
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Monday, July 11, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 
40 East Center Avenue 

Village Hall Board Room 
 

REVISED 
NOTICE & AGENDA 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. CONSIDERATION OF THE JUNE 27, 2016 VILLAGE BOARD MEETING  

 
4. NON-AGENDA ITEMS AND VISITORS 
 

The Village President and Board of Trustees allocate fifteen (15) minutes during this item for those individuals 
who would like the opportunity to address the Village Board of Trustees on any matter not listed on the agenda.  
Each person addressing the Village Board of Trustees is asked to limit their comments to a maximum of five (5) 
minutes. 
 

5. VILLAGE BOARD SETS THE ORDER OF THE MEETING 
 

The Village President and Board of Trustees will entertain requests from anyone present on the order of business 
to be conducted during the Village Board Meeting. 
 

6. VILLAGE FINANCE REPORT 
 

a) Warrant Report for July 1-15, 2016 and June 2016 Payroll Expenditures 
b) June 2016 Finance Report 

 
7. VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
8. VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
9. VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

CONSENT 
 

10. ACCEPTANCE OF THE CORRESPONDENCE 
 

Please note all correspondence was delivered to the Village Board of Trustees in the Informational Reports on 
June 24 and July 1, 2016. 
 

11. A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN ILLINOIS ELEVATOR SAFETY PROGRAM AGREEMENT AND 
AUTHORIZING CERTAIN ELEVATOR SAFETY STANDARDS 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 



Board of Trustees Regular Meeting – July 11, 2016 
 

Page 2 

12. A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF TWO FORD POLICE VEHICLES AND THE 
DECLARATION OF TWO CHEVROLET SQUAD CARS AS SURPLUS PROPERTY 
 

13. A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH LYNN MONTEI 
ASSOCIATES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A VILLAGE STRATEGIC PLAN 

 
14. A RESOLUTION TERMINATING THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT THAT CREATED THE 

LAKE AND MCHENRY COUNTIES FIRE DEPARTMENT’S SPECIALIZED RESPONSE TEAMS AND 
TRANSFERRING THOSE FUNCTIONS TO MABAS DIVISIONS 4 AND 5 SPECIALIZED RESPONSE 
TEAMS 

 
15. A RESOLUTION APPROVING A FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 515 

CAMBRIDGE LANE 
 

16. AN ORDINANCE GRANTING VARIATIONS FROM LOT FRONTAGE, LOT WIDTH, AND ACCESSORY 
STRUCTURE REQUIREMENTS (515 Cambridge Lane) 

 
17. TRUSTEE’S REPORT 
 
18. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
19. CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE JUNE 27, 2016 EXECUTIVE SESSION MEETING 

 
20. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

R. Drew Irvin 
Village Administrator 

 
The Village of Lake Bluff is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting 
and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding accessibility of the 
meeting or the facilities, are requested to contact R. Drew Irvin, Village Administrator, at 234-0774 or TDD number 234-2153 promptly to allow the Village of Lake 
Bluff to make reasonable accommodations. 

  
 
 
 
 
 



  
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

JUNE 27, 2016 
                                                                                                     

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Village President O’Hara called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. in the Lake Bluff Village Hall Board 
Room, and Village Clerk Aaron Towle called the roll.  
 
The following were present: 
 
Village President:  Kathleen O’Hara 
 
Trustees:   Barbara Ankenman 

Steve Christensen 
Mark Dewart 
Eric Grenier  
John Josephitis 

     William Meyer 
     
Also Present:   Aaron Towle, Village Clerk 

Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 
    Peter Friedman, Village Attorney 
    Susan Griffin, Finance Director     
    Michael Croak, Building Codes Supervisor 
    Jeff Hansen, Village Engineer 
    David Belmonte, Police Chief 
    Jake Terlap, Public Works Superintendent 
    Brandon Stanick, Assistant to the Village Administrator (A to VA)  
  

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
President O’Hara led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

3. CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES 
 
Trustee Meyer moved to approve the June 13, 2016 Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Minutes as 
presented.  Trustee Grenier seconded the motion.  The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

4. VILLAGE BOARD SETS THE ORDER OF THE MEETING 
 
At the request of those present, Trustee Dewart moved to take Agenda Items #12, #7a, #15 and #16 then 
return to the regular order of the meeting.  Trustee Christensen seconded the motion.  The motion passed 
on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

5. NON-AGENDA ITEMS AND VISITORS 
 
 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting June 27, 2016 

2 
 

 
President O’Hara stated the Village President and Board of Trustees allocate fifteen minutes for those 
individuals who would like the opportunity to address the Village Board on any matter not listed on the 
agenda.  Each person addressing the Village Board of Trustees is asked to limit their comments to a 
maximum of five (5) minutes. 
 
There were no requests to address the Board. 
 

6. ITEM #12 – A RESOLUTION HONORING THE PUBLIC SERVICE OF MICHAEL 
GOLDSBERRY 

 
President O’Hara read the resolution honoring the public service of Michael Goldsberry and presented 
him with a framed copy of the resolution.  In addition, President O’Hara recognized the Goldsberry Family 
for their contributions to the community in supporting Michael Goldsberry. 
 
Mr. Goldsberry thanked his family for their support.  He stated volunteering is important and a great way 
to be involved in the community and encouraged everyone to volunteer. 
 
Trustee Dewart moved to adopt the resolution. Trustee Christensen seconded the motion. The motion 
passed on a unanimous voice vote. 

 
7. ITEM #7A – VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT REGARDING A REQUEST FROM 

THE CENTRAL LAKE COUNTY JOINT ACTION WATER AGENCY TO WAIVE BUILDING 
PERMIT FEES FOR MODIFICATION TO THE WATER PLANT LOCATED AT 200 
ROCKLAND ROAD 

 
President O’Hara reported in February 2015 the Village passed Resolution 2015-7 approving a temporary 
easement agreement with CLCJAWA to allow the use of Village property east of CLCJAWA for 
temporary staging activities for a period of up to 26 months from the commencement date at a cost of 
$25,000. The need for this easement agreement is specific to the CLCJAWA ozone generation and 
ancillary projects.   
 
President O’Hara reported CLCJAWA is now requesting a waiver of building permit fees of $196,620 for 
the $6.554 million ozone generation system conversion project.  CLCJAWA is changing its ozone 
generation process from one that generates ozone from ambient air to one generating ozone from pure 
oxygen.  Additionally, CLCJAWA is requesting fee waivers of $2,526 for two smaller projects: the 
replacement of an air conditioning system and the installation of new control valves in a boiler system 
with construction costs of $65,130 and $19,100, respectively.  She further reported exterior changes to the 
building for the ozone replacement system consist of the installation of new ventilation louvres in the 
exterior walls on the south and east sides of the building. CLC JAWA anticipates going through the 
Village’s site plan review process in July for these exterior changes.  In addition, President O’Hara 
reported in the past the Village has approved requests from the Lake Bluff Park District, CLCJAWA, and 
the Union Church of Lake Bluff to waive building permit fees and, for the Park District, demolition taxes.   
 
Trustee Dewart moved to waive CLCJAWA building permit fees as requested.  Trustee Christensen 
seconded the motion.  A discussion followed. 
 
 
 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting June 27, 2016 

3 
 

 
Mr. Darrell Blenniss, CLCJAWA Executive Director, thanked the Village Board for their consideration 
of the request.  He stated the project is part of a long range capital improvement plan.  The request to 
waive second reading is to allow construction to begin within the next month. 
 
Mr. Bill Soucie, CLCJAWA Operations Director, provided a brief summary of the ozone generation 
system conversion project.  The system allows CLCJAWA to convert oxygen to ozone which is bubbled 
into the water to kill organisms and remove compounds from the water. 
 
In response to a question from Trustee Christensen, Mr. Blenniss stated CLCJAWA has requested fee 
waivers for projects related to its facility in Libertyville. 
 
Village Administrator Drew Irvin stated Staff is waiting for CLCJAWA to clarify the change in intensity 
associated with the ozone generation system conversion project in term of noise and vibration.  He stated 
in 2002 zoning relief was approved under specific conditions which included hours of construction, a 
single point of contact to address residents questions and a requirement for any out of pocket fees that the 
Village would have incurred related to inspecting those improvements would be passed through.  Village 
Administrator Irvin stated CLCJAWA is scheduled to go through the ABR site plan review process due 
to the exterior modifications. 
 
Trustee Josephitis inquired of the inspection cost for this project.  Village Administrator Irvin stated 
building permit fees are 3% of construction cost which includes equipment and it is estimated the 
inspection cost will amount to approximately $3,000. 
 
Trustee Grenier asked if the changes were maintenance related improvements.  Mr. Blenniss stated these 
improvements are based on cost and efficiency improvements to the system and briefly explained how the 
current system operates. 
 
Trustee Dewart moved to amend the motion to include waiving reasonable expenses incurred by the 
Village not to exceed $5,000.  Trustee Meyer seconded the motion.  The motion as amended passed on 
the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (6) Ankenman, Christensen, Dewart, Grenier, Josephitis and Meyer 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent: (0)   

 
8. ITEM #15 – AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE LAKE BLUFF ZONING REGULATIONS TO 

ALLOW ELECTRIC LIFT SYSTEMS ON BLUFFS 
 

President O’Hara reported on May 31, 2016 the Village received a zoning application from Mr. and Mrs. 
Edward and Margaret Fiorentino (Petitioners), property owners of 611 Lansdowne Lane, requesting:  
 

 A text amendment to the Zoning Code allowing electric lift systems (“trams”) on bluffs as a 
special use or as a permitted use for residential lakefront properties; and 

 A special use permit (SUP) to maintain and operate a tram on the bluff located at 611 Lansdowne 
Lane.  
 

 
 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting June 27, 2016 

4 
 

 
 
President O’Hara reported the Property Owner is requesting this text amendment because, pursuant to 
Section 10-12-5 of the Zoning Code, the Village does not allow construction activity on bluffs or ravines 
except for paths, steps/stairs, decks and benches.  For your information, the Village has previously granted  
zoning relief (pursuant to Ordinances #2004-26 and #2007-13) to allow the construction, maintenance and 
operation of a tram on the bluff for two lakefront properties.  In addition to providing safe access to the 
lakefront, tram systems cause less disturbance to the bluff face than the surface excavation necessary to 
install steps at grade which require small retaining walls to move laterally across a bluff slope resulting in 
more disturbance to the slope.   President O’Hara further reported at the conclusion of the public hearing 
on June 15th the Plan Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals (PCZBA) unanimously voted to 
recommend the Village Board:  a) approve a text amendment allowing trams on bluffs on residential 
lakefront property as a special use with the condition of allowing one tram per property; and b) grant a 
SUP to construct, operate and maintain a tram on the bluff located at 611 Lansdowne Lane.  
 

President O’Hara inquired of the request to waive second reading of the ordinance.  Mr. Jeff Tondola, 
representative of the Petitioner, stated the waiver would allow time to expedite the engineering process to 
further evaluate the bluff for future work related to this project. 
 
Village Administrator Irvin expressed his understanding the waiver request would allow installation of 
the tram system for safe accessibility to the bluff to allow project engineers to conduct an erosion 
assessment. He stated the desire by the property owner was expressed during the public hearing process 
to repair the existing stairs.  
 
In response to a question from President O’Hara, Mr. Tondola stated should there be evidence of instability 
on the bluff the installation of the trams and stairs would be re-evaluated. 
 
In response to a comment regarding annual inspections, Village Administrator Irvin stated Staff reviewed 
the Elevator Safety Act and because this a private conveyance on residential property, an annual inspection 
is not currently required. 
 
Village Administrator Irvin stated Staff’s recommendation was making this use as of right, as with the 
stairs there are certain improvements that can be constructed on bluffs and ravines which are a permitted 
exception.  He stated Staff is recommending including trams on that list of exceptions to lessen the burden 
on future property owners seeking to install a tram. 
 
As there were no further comments from the Board, Trustee Josephitis moved to approve first reading of 
the ordinance as presented with the conditions recommended by the PCZBA. Trustee Grenier seconded 
the motion.  The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (6) Christensen, Dewart, Grenier, Josephitis, Meyer and Ankenman 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent: (0) 
 
At the request of the Petitioner, Trustee Grenier moved to waive second reading of the ordinance.  Trustee 
Christensen seconded the motion.  The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
 
 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting June 27, 2016 

5 
 

 
Ayes:  (6) Dewart, Grenier, Josephitis, Meyer, Ankenman and Christensen 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent: (0) 

 
9. ITEM #16 – AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR THE PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 611 LANSDOWNE LANE TO PERMIT THE CONSTRUCTION OF AN 
ELECTRIC LIFT SYSTEM ON A BLUFF 

 
President O’Hara reported on May 31, 2016 the Village received a zoning application from Mr. and Mrs. 
Edward and Margaret Fiorentino (Petitioners), property owners of 611 Lansdowne Lane, requesting:  
 

 A text amendment to the Zoning Code allowing electric lift systems (“trams”) on bluffs as a special 
use or as a permitted use for residential lakefront properties; and 

 A special use permit (SUP) to maintain and operate a tram on the bluff located at 611 Lansdowne 
Lane.  

 
President O’Hara reported at the conclusion of the public hearing on June 15th the PCZBA unanimously 
voted to recommend the Village Board:  a) approve a text amendment allowing trams on bluffs on 
residential lakefront property as a special use with the conditions of allowing one tram per property and 
requiring an annual inspection; and b) grant a SUP to construct, operate and maintain a tram on the bluff 
located at 611 Lansdowne Lane  
 
As there were no comments from the Board, Trustee Meyer moved to approve first reading of the 
ordinance.  Trustee Josephitis seconded the motion.  The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (6) Grenier, Josephitis, Meyer, Ankenman, Christensen and Dewart 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent: (0) 
 
At the request of the Petitioner, Trustee Dewart moved to waive second reading of the ordinance.  Trustee 
Josephitis seconded the motion.  The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (6) Josephitis, Meyer, Ankenman, Christensen, Dewart and Grenier  
Nays:  (0) 
Absent: (0) 

 
10. ITEM #6A – WARRANT REPORT FOR JUNE 16-30, 2016  

 
President O’Hara reported expenditure of Village funds for payment of invoices in the amount of 
$100,111.78 for June 16-30, 2016. 
 
As such, the total expenditures for this period is in the amount of $100,111.78. 
 
As there were no questions from the Board, Trustee Christensen moved to approve the Warrant Report.   
Trustee Josephitis seconded the motion.  The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
 
 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting June 27, 2016 

6 
 

 
Ayes:  (6) Meyer, Ankenman, Christensen, Dewart, Grenier and Josephitis 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent: (0) 

 
11. ITEM # 7 – VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT  

 
Village Administrator Irvin had no further information to report. 
 

12. ITEM #8 – VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
Village Attorney Peter Friedman had no report. 
 

13. ITEM #9 – VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S REPORT  
 
President O’Hara thanked the Lake Bluff History Museum and Trustee Dewart for their work in hosting 
the annual car show.  Village President O’Hara reported on various ongoing events and the upcoming 
Fireman’s Ball on July 3rd, the 4th of July Parade, and Criterium Bike Race on July 23rd. 
 
Trustee Dewart stated the car show was an extraordinary event and thanked the local merchants, volunteers 
and Village Staff for their support. 
 

14. ITEMS #10 AND #11 – CONSENT AGENDA 
 
President O’Hara introduced the following Consent Agenda items for consideration:   
 

10. Correspondence Delivered in the June 10 and 17, 2016 Informational Reports; and  
11. Second Reading of an Ordinance Ascertaining the Prevailing Rate of Wages for Laborers, 

Mechanics, and Other Workers for Lake Bluff Public Works Projects for 2016. 
 
Trustee Ankenman moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Trustee Meyer seconded the motion.  The 
motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

15. ITEM #13 – A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH BAXTER & WOODMAN, INC (Phase 1 Design Agreement for Moffett 
Road Bridge Repair and Resurfacing Project) 
 
President O’Hara reported the Village is pursuing federal funding through the Surface Transportation 
Program (STP) for the repair of the land bridge just south of the intersection of Moffett Road and East 
Witchwood Lane and the resurfacing of Moffett Road between East Center Avenue and the southern 
Village limit.  In accordance with STP funding requirements, a Phase 1 Engineering and Environmental 
Study is required. The Phase I Study is not eligible for federal funding.  Phase II (final design) and Phase 
III (construction) are eligible. Construction of the project is expected during the summer of 2018. The 
Village requested a proposal from Baxter & Woodman, Inc. to prepare and submit the Phase I study to the 
Illinois Department of Transportation.  Baxter & Woodman, Inc. has worked with the Village on the 
Moffett Road project in the past and has specific expertise in completing projects within the STP funding 
process.   
 
 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting June 27, 2016 

7 
 

 
President O’Hara reported the proposal from Baxter & Woodman, Inc. is for an amount not to exceed 
$57,700. The FY2016-2017 budget contains $250,000 for the Moffett Road culvert project.  
Approximately $10,000 of the budgeted amount has been spent to date on engineering of potential 
temporary repairs to Moffett Road and the slope.  The remaining budgeted $182,300 will be used for 
temporary repairs to Moffett Road, potential easement acquisition costs, and Phase II engineering. It is 
recommended that the board approve the proposal from Baxter & Woodman, Inc. for an amount not to 
exceed $57,700.   
 
President O’Hara asked how the State’s lack of funding for IDOT engineering and construction programs 
would impact the project.  Village Engineer Jeff Hansen stated Phase I of the project is not federally 
funded and will not be impacted.  However, should the State not pass a budget, Phase II of the project will 
be impacted in 2017.  The current lack of funding is currently delaying the Public Safety Building and 
Sheridan Road sidewalks project. 
 
As there were no further questions from the Board, Trustee Ankenman moved to adopt the resolution. 
Trustee Josephitis seconded the motion. The motion passed on the following roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (6) Ankenman, Christensen, Dewart, Grenier, Josephitis and Meyer 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent: (0) 
 

16. ITEM #14 – A RESOLUTION TERMINATING THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT THAT CREATED THE LAKE AND MCHENRY COUNTIES FIRE 
DEPARTMENT’S SPECIALIZED RESPONSE TEAMS AND TRANSFERRING THOSE 
FUNCTIONS TO MABAS DIVISIONS 4 AND 5 SPECIALIZED RESPONSE TEAMS 
 
Village Administrator Irvin reported the Village Attorney continues to research and finalize Village Board 
action documents involved in the termination of the intergovernmental agreement that created the Lake 
and McHenry Counties Fire Department’s Specialized Response Teams and transferring those functions 
to MABAS Divisions 4 and 5 Specialized Response Teams. 
 
It was the consensus of the Village Board to take no action on this agenda item. 
 

17. ITEM #17 – TRUSTEE’S REPORT 
  
There was no Trustee’s report. 
 

18. ITEM #18 – EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
At 7:27 p.m. Trustee Christensen moved to enter into Executive Session for the purpose of discussing 
Possible Litigation (5 ILCS 120/2(c)(11)), Land Acquisition (5 ILCS 120/2(c)(5)) and Executive Session 
Minutes (5 ILCS 120/2(c)(21)).  Trustee Meyer seconded the motion.  The motion passed on the following 
roll call vote: 
 
Ayes:  (6) Christensen, Dewart, Grenier, Josephitis, Meyer and Ankenman 
Nays:  (0) 
Absent: (0) 
 



Board Trustees Regular Meeting June 27, 2016 

8 
 

 
There being no further business to discuss, Trustee Grenier moved to adjourn out of executive session.  
Trustee Christensen seconded the motion and the motion passed on a unanimous voice vote at 7:59 p.m. 
 

19. ITEM #19 – CONSIDERATION OF THE JUNE 13, 2016 EXECUTIVE SESSION MEETING 
MINUTES 
 
Trustee Dewart moved to approve the June 13, 2016 Executive Session Meeting Minutes as presented.  
Trustee Josephitis seconded the motion.  The motion passed on a unanimous voice vote. 
 

20. ITEM #20 – ADJOURNMENT 
                                                                              
Trustee Meyer moved to adjourn the regular meeting.  Trustee Grenier seconded the motion and the 
motion passed on a unanimous voice vote.  The meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
R. Drew Irvin      Aaron Towle 
Village Administrator     Village Clerk 

















































VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

        Agenda Item: 6b 

 

 

Subject: 

 

JUNE 2016 FINANCIAL REPORT                      

 

Action Requested: 

 

RECEIPT OF FINANCIAL REPORT (Voice Vote) 

 

Originated By: 

 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE 

 

Referred To:  

 

VILLAGE BOARD 

 

Summary of Background and Reason For Request: 

 

Attached for your consideration is the June 2016 Financial Report. 

 

Highlights of this report are: 

 Sales tax revenue for May 2015-March 2016 is $2.569 million which is $267k or 

12% greater and home rule sales tax of $726k is $230k or 46% greater than the 

same period in 2014-15;  

 Income tax revenue of $115k for May-June 2016 is 20% lower than the same 

period in 2015; 

 Building permit revenue is $123k and is $45k 57% greater than May-June 2015; 

 We continue to closely monitor the actions in Springfield and assess the 

implications to the Village of potential changes in State-shared revenue 

allocations, property tax limitation changes, or pension reform become law. 

 

Reports and Documents Attached: 

 

 June 2016 Financial Report 

 

 

Village Administrator’s Recommendation:  Acceptance of Report. 

 

 

Date Referred to Village Board: 7/11/2016 

 



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Village President and Board of Trustees 
  Drew Irvin, Village Administrator 
 
FROM:  Susan M. Griffin, Director of Finance 
 
DATE:  July 6, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: June 2016 Monthly Report 
 
Treasury Report – Exhibit A 
Attached is the two page Treasury Report for June 2016.  The total cash and investments in the 
treasury for the governmental and water funds are $10,069,267 plus $8,977,292 for the Police 
Pension Fund.   
 
Investment Report – Exhibit B 
Attached is the Investment Report for the month ending June 30, 2016.  The par value plus interest 
credited to the CD’s for the governmental and Water fund short-term investments is $2,735,943.  
The Village investments are managed within the guidelines of the Village’s Cash Management and 
Investment Policy.   
 
Budget Analysis Report – Exhibit C  
Attached is the Budget Analysis Report for June 2016. The revenues in Exhibit C reflect actual and 
estimated receipts.  Below is more specific information about the major revenues and expenditures 
by fund.  The General and Water Funds revenues and expenditures that exceed or are under 20% of 
the prior year amounts have been highlighted on Exhibit C.     
 
General Fund Revenues: 
 
Property Tax revenue is received predominately in June and September as the taxes are due by the 
first week of those months.  The total Village tax extension for the 2015 property taxes (received in 
FY17) is $3,193,440 with the General Fund receiving 69% or $2,195,529 of the monies.  The IMRF, 
FICA and Police Pension Funds receive the balance of the revenues of $997,811.  The Police Pension 
property taxes are recorded as a revenue in the General Fund and a transfer out of the General Fund 
into the Police Pension Fund in compliance with GASB.   
 
The 2015 property tax extension, received from May-December 2016 and recorded as revenue in 
FY2017, of $3,193,439 is $43,744 or 1.4% more than the 2014 extension.  For the first time since 
2009 the Village’s EAV grew increasing by 8.8% to $521.832 million.   
 
Sales Tax Revenue (non-home rule 1% and local use tax) is shown in table format on the next page 
with monthly revenues for FY16, FY15, and FY14.  This chart reflects the May 2015-March 2016 
revenues for FY16 which are $266,639 or 12% greater than the same period in 2014-15.  The FY15 
sales taxes of $2,533,246 are $272,370 or 12% greater than FY14. The chart on page 3 shows the 
non-home rule sales tax by month for the calendar years 2009 through March 2016 with estimates 
for April 2016 as these numbers have not been reported to the municipalities at this time. 
 
 
 
 



June 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 2 

 

 
Liability Month 

FY2015-16 
Revenue 
(A) 

FY2014-15 
Revenue  
(B) 

$ Change 
FY15 to 
FY16 (A-B) 

FY2013-14 
Revenue  
(C) 

$ Change 
FY14- FY15  
(B-C) 

May 2015 $  230,253 $  214,330  $ 15,923 $  208,839  $   5,491 

June  $  221,167 $  207,740  $ 13,427 $  198,781  $   8,959 

July $  231,558 $  235,549 ($   3,991) $  193,135  $ 42,414 

August  $  237,694 $  210,817  $ 26,877 $  186,436  $ 24,381 

September  $  229,733 $  189,923  $ 39,810 $  191,150 ($   1,227) 

October  $  243,811 $  191,588  $ 52,223 $  203,927 ($ 12,339) 

November  $  261,349 $  216,524  $ 44,825 $  201,292  $ 15,232 

December  $  274,963 $  229,680  $ 45,283 $  228,777  $      903 

January 2016 $  207,309 $  201,909  $   5,400 $  128,878  $ 73,031 

February $  195,430 $  184,808  $ 10,622 $  140,358  $ 44,450 

March  $  235,774 $  219,534  $ 16,240 $  174,087  $ 45,447 

April   $  230,844  $  205,216  $ 25,628 

FY Total  $2,569,041 $2,533,246  $ 266,639 $2,260,876  $ 272,370 

FY Monthly 
Average  

 
$ 233,549 

 
  $211,104 

  
  $188,406 

 

 
 
Home rule sales tax became effective January 1, 2006 with actual receipts shown below.  By statute 
this 1% tax does not apply to food/medicines and titled products such as autos. The home rule sales 
tax revenue for May 2015-March 2016 of $726,294 is $229,694 or 46% higher than the same period 
in 2014-15.  The FY2015 home rule sales taxes of $544,272 are $18,839 or 3.6% more than FY14 
revenue. The chart on page 4 shows the home rule sales tax by month for the calendar years 2009 
through March 2016 with estimates for April 2016.   
 

Home Rule Sales 
Tax By Liability 
Month 

FY2015-16 
Revenue 
(A) 

FY2014-15 
Revenue 
(B) 

$ Change 
FY15 to 
FY16 (A-B) 

FY2013-14 
Revenue 
(C) 

$ Change 
FY14 to FY15 
(B-C) 

May 2015  $ 60,325  $ 51,864  $  8,461  $ 54,714 ($   2,850) 

June   $ 55,143  $ 53,809  $  1,334  $ 50,760  $   3,049 

July   $ 59,056  $ 45,382  $13,674  $ 41,299  $   4,083 

August   $ 65,060  $ 47,867  $17,193  $ 44,476  $   3,391 

September   $ 69,262  $ 44,378  $24,884  $ 48,429 ($   4,051) 

October   $ 71,862  $ 49,349  $22,513  $ 44,804  $   4,545 

November   $ 72,579  $ 44,780  $27,799  $ 43,688  $   1,092 

December  $ 88,604  $ 51,229  $37,375  $ 56,579 ($   5,350) 

January 2016   $ 56,058  $ 40,487  $15,571  $ 28,248  $ 12,239 

February   $ 55,196  $ 30,334  $24,862  $ 27,948  $   2,386 

March   $ 73,149  $ 37,121  $36,028  $ 38,973  $  (1,852) 

April    $ 47,672   $ 45,515  $   2,157 

FY Total  $726,294 $544,272  $229,694 $525,433  $ 18,839 

FY Monthly 
Average 

 
$  66,027 

 
$  45,356 

  
$  43,786 

 



June 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 3 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2011 

2011 

2012 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2014 

2016 

2015 

2015 

$100

$110

$120

$130

$140

$150

$160

$170

$180

$190

$200

$210

$220

$230

$240

$250

$260

$270

$280

$290

Thousands
SALES TAX REVENUE

(not including Home Rule Sales Tax)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2016 2015

Apr Estimate



June 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 4 

 

 
 

2011
2012 

2012 

2013

2013 

2014 

2014 

2016 

2015 

2015 

$25

$28

$31

$34

$37

$40

$43

$46

$49

$52

$55

$58

$61

$64

$67

$70

$73

$76

$79

$82

$85

$88

$91

$94

Thousands

HOME RULE SALES TAX REVENUE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2016 2015

Apr Estimate 



June 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 5 

Other Taxes category encompasses state income, personal property replacement, and the demolition tax.   
 
The actual income tax revenue for May-June 2016 at $115,355 is 20% less than the same period in 2015.  May 
2015-April 2016 (FY16) at $609,807 is 8.8% higher than FY15 at $560,382.  Below is a chart showing the income 
tax revenues by month from January 2011-June 2016.   

 
According to the Illinois Municipal League, the 36% jump in the May 2013 receipts were an aberration caused 
partly by individuals and corporations reporting capital gains income in anticipation of significant changes in 
Federal tax policy.  The revenue for May 2015 is $102,570 or 5% more than June 2013.  Again this could be an 
increase in capital gains. 
 
The following page shows a bar graph of the income tax revenue by fiscal year for FY09-FY16. Fiscal year 2016 
total revenue of $609,807 is the highest year in over 20 years.  However, this source of revenue is one that is 
likely to decline if the State revises the formula for sharing income tax revenue with local municipalities. No 
word yet with any conclusive plans regarding changes to the municipal share as the State still has not approved 
a FY2015-16 budget. 
 

CY2011

CY2012

CY2013

CY2014

CY 2015

CY2016

CY2016

CY2016

CY2016

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

$45

$50

$55

$60

$65

$70

$75

$80

$85

$90

$95

$100

$105

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Thousands LAKE BLUFF STATE SHARED INCOME TAX

CY2011

CY2012

CY2013

CY2014

CY2015

CY2016



June 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 6 

 
Utility Taxes category is comprised of a tax on electric, natural gas, and telecommunications usage.  The tax is 
5% of the distribution, supply, furnishing or sale of natural gas and electricity consumed within the Village with 
the electric tax being based on tiers of kilowatt hours usage.  The telecommunications tax is 5% of the gross 
charge for the act or privilege of originating or receiving telecommunications in the Village and all services 
rendered in connection therewith.   
 
North Shore Gas utility tax revenues are received quarterly in June (for February-April), September (for May-
July), December (for August-October), & March (for November-January).  Below is a chart showing the natural 
gas tax revenues by quarter for the past 5 years. 

 
 
The February-April 2014 quarter amount of $107,763 was 68% greater than the same quarter in 2013. This is 
attributed to the increase in natural gas consumption for building heating because of the subzero 
temperatures experienced in the Midwest during the winter of 2014. This cooler weather pattern is assumed 
to be partly the reason for the May-July 2014 amount of $51,521 which is the highest amount received for the 
summer quarter since at least 1996!  May-July 2015 tax of $30,411 is consistent with the same quarters in 
previous years, except for 2014.  The August-October 2015 tax of $20,059 is slightly less than the prior year.  
The November 2015-January 2016 tax of $37,234 is 37% less than the same period the prior year consistent 
with the low fuel prices and mild winter weather. 

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

FY2009 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016

FISCAL YEAR

STATE SHARED INCOME TAX

2015
2015

Nov 2015-Jan 2016 Feb-Apr 2016

$51,521

$107,763

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

100,000

110,000

May-July Aug-Oct Nov-Jan Feb-Apr

R
e

ve
n

u
e

 $

Natural Gas Utility Tax Revenue

FY16 FY15 FY14 FY13 FY12 FY11



June 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 7 

Below is a table showing the natural gas tax revenue by fiscal year with the dollar and percentage change from 
the prior year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ComEd electric tax actual revenue for FY16 at $310,025 is 0.6% greater than $308,147 for FY15. FY15 of 
$308,147 is $11,309 or 3.5% less than the $319,456 revenue for FY14.  The FY14 revenue was $9,178 or 2.8% 
less than FY13 revenue of $328,634.   
 
Actual telecomm taxes are remitted to the Village by the State; actual receipts lag about 3-4 months from the 
liability period. The Village May 2015-January 2016 revenue of $170,233 is 2.6% less than the same period in 
2014 of $174,761.  In April 2013 the State notified the Village that a large telecommunications carrier was 
ordered to seek refunds from the states on behalf of customers that were charged telecomm taxes on 
transactions that were not properly taxable under federal and state laws.  Illinois municipalities were advised 
that a significant portion of the State refunds involved proceeds that were distributed to local governments. 
The Village’s portion of the recovery of distributions was $32,792.  While the State recovered these funds over 
an equal amount each month for a year during FY15, the Village reduced its FY14 telecommunications tax 
revenue by this amount. After this adjustment, FY14 revenue is $217,745; $55,867 or 25.7% less than FY13 
revenue of $273,612. The FY15 revenue is $231,348 compared to $217,745 for FY14 (after taking into account 
the refundable adjustment noted above) which represents a 6.2% increase.   
 
Below is a chart showing the telecommunications (from various sources), ComEd electric, and the North Shore 
natural gas utility taxes by fiscal year.  Upon review of this chart, it is clear that all three of these revenue 
sources are well below their pre-2008-2009 amounts. Given the more efficient appliances, consumer 
conservation habits, and the lower price of fuel, projections are that this source will not likely rise to those 
levels in the next five years. 

 

North Shore Gas

ComEd Electric

Telecomm

$140
$150
$160
$170
$180
$190
$200
$210
$220
$230
$240
$250
$260
$270
$280
$290
$300
$310
$320
$330
$340
$350
$360

FY2009 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015

Thousands

FISCAL YEAR

UTILITY TAX REVENUE
by Type for FY2009-2015

North Shore Gas
ComEd Electric
Telecomm

Telecomm refund 
accounted for in FY14

Fiscal Yr Total Natural Gas Tax 
Revenue 

$ Change 
from PY 

% Change 
from PY 

16 $144,777 ($66,851) (32%) 

15 $211,628 ($  6,501)   (3%) 

14 $218,129  $71,057   48% 

13 $147,072  $      128    --- 

12 $146,944 ($24,832)  (14%) 



June 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 8 

Building Permit revenue for May-June 2016 is $122,773 compared to $45,373 in for the same period in 2015.  
This represents $45,373 or 59% more revenue in FY17 than FY16.  FY15 ended the year 113% more than the 
receipts for FY14 due to the Target development, Heinen’s remodeling of the Dominick’s store and two large 
residences in Lansdowne.   
 
On the next page is a graph of the building permit revenues since FY09 through FY2016.  
 

 
 
Sewer charge revenue for May-June 2016 is $24,918 which is $1,202 or 5% less than May-June 2015 revenue 
of $26,120. The sewer charge is billed at the rate of $1.10 per thousand gallons of water used with a credit 
during the billing months of August-October for water presumed for lawn irrigation purposes.    
  
General Fund Expenditures: 
The May-June 2016 expenditures of $1.816 million is $501,467 higher than May-June 2015 due to the payout 
for road repaving projects.  This accounts for the increase in the Streets division and Capital category from the 
prior fiscal year-to-date. 
 
Interfund transfers are for the Police Pension property taxes, Vehicle Replacement contributions, and the 2012 
Refunding Bonds debt payment. Refunding bond interest is paid in June and December with the principal 
payment in December each year. 
 
Water Sales: 
The Water sales in dollars for May-June 2016 is $8,806 less than the same period in 2015.  Of this difference 
$3,430 is attributed to the rate change effective May 1, 2016 from $6.95 to $7.10 per thousand gallons of 
water consumed. Billed consumption was 22.867 million gallons (mg) in May-June 2016 compared to 24.645 
mg for May-June 2015. The reduction in billed consumption of 1.778 mg accounts for $12,236. 
 
Water Purchases: 
Water purchases for May-June 2016 are 41.484 mg compared to 39.281 mg for May-June 2015. Effective May 
1, 2016, CLCJAWA increased the wholesale water rate from $2.68 to $2.73 per 1,000 gallons of water 
purchased.  The increase in water purchased during this period of 2.203 mg accounted for $5,904 in cost and 
the rate increase added $2,074 for a total increase of $7,978 in water purchase expense from $105,273 in 2015 
to $113,251 in 2016. 

 $200

 $250

 $300

 $350

 $400

 $450

 $500

 $550

 $600

 $650

 $700

 $750

 $800

 $850

 $900

 $950

 $1,000

 $1,050

 $1,100

 $1,150

FY2009 FY2010 FY2011 FY2012 FY2013 FY2014 FY2015 FY2016

T
h

o
u

s
a

n
d

s

BuildingPermit Revenues



June 2016 Monthly Financial Report 

Page 9 

The June 2016 water purchases exceeded June 2015 by over 2 million gallons (of the 2.203 mg increase from 
last fiscal year) and it should be noted that much of this water will be billed in July and August.   
 
Special Revenue, Capital Projects, and Debt Service Funds: 
The revenues and expenditures for these funds are consistent with their specified purpose.  The IMRF and FICA 
funds expenditures are financed by property tax revenues.  The Motor Fuel Tax Fund (MFT) receives 
allotments each month from the state to be used exclusively for roadway improvements.  In FY17 and FY16 all 
road improvements are expensed in the General Fund.  The Redevelopment Fund budget of $250k is for the 
Moffett Road box culvert improvement project.  
 



06-Jul-16

Village of Lake Bluff

Treasury Report EXHIBIT A1

For the Month Ending June 30, 2016

Beginning Cash Inter-Fund June 2016

Fund Name # Cash Balance Receipts Acct. Pay/EFT Gross Payroll Transfers/ Ending Cash

Pension Benefits Other Transactions Balance

General  1 6,385,685.43 1,913,879.15 904,682.03 269,864.75 (10,746.25) 7,114,271.55

IMRF 7 7,878.68 72,233.35 14,156.66 65,955.37

Foreign Fire Tax 10 30,342.95 30,342.95

Social Security 14 112,667.30 92,957.26 21,215.32 184,409.24

Motor Fuel Tax 29 324,644.39 13,035.00 337,679.39

E911 32 261,498.46 11,929.85 273,428.31

2012 G.O. Bonds 37 715.40 10,746.25 10,746.25 715.40

Special Serv 38 13,450.32 3.76 13,454.08

Capital Improve 42 13,783.08 3.85 13,786.93

Redevelopment 43 86,958.91 24.30 86,983.21

Vehicle Replace 45 971,717.14 579.29 1,297.00 970,999.43

Water Fund 46 965,734.40 105,904.80 80,601.60 15,595.10 975,442.50

Train Wreath 61 1,798.17 0.50 1,798.67

Subtotal 9,176,874.63$         2,210,551.11$      1,032,698.86$      285,459.85$        -$                    10,069,267.03$       

Police Pension  (a) 62 8,760,989.49 285,455.07 5,416.00 63,736.64 8,977,291.92

Total 17,937,864.12$       2,496,006.18$      1,038,114.86$      349,196.49$        -$                    19,046,558.95$       

(a)  The Police Pension beginning balance was adjusted to reflect the investments at market value as of April 30, 2016.  

      Disbursements

Page 

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
10



06-Jul-16

Village of Lake Bluff

Treasury Report EXHIBIT A2

As of June 30, 2016

June 30, 2016

Checking Savings/ Certificates Federal Gov't Mutual Funds Total Cash &

Fund Name # Accounts Money Market IL Funds of Deposit Corporate & Municipal Stocks/Equities Investments

Max Safe LF Bnk (a) Bonds Obligations (a)

General 1 2,875,134.48 0.00 1,771,145.22 2,467,991.85    7,114,271.55

IMRF 7 65,955.37 65,955.37

Foreign Fire Tax 10 30,342.95 30,342.95

Social Security 14 184,409.24 184,409.24

Motor Fuel Tax 29 337,679.39 337,679.39

E911 32 273,428.31 273,428.31

2012 G.O. Bond 37 715.40 715.40

Special Serv 38 13,454.08 13,454.08

Capital Improve 42 13,786.93 13,786.93

Redevelopment 43 86,983.21 0.00 86,983.21

Vehicle Replace 45 702,903.89 268,095.54 970,999.43

Water Fund 46 603,183.26 372,259.24 0.00 975,442.50

Train Wreath 61 1,798.67           1,798.67

Subtotal 3,508,660.69$  -$                 3,824,518.95$  2,736,087.39$  -$                 -$                  10,069,267.03$      

Police Pension 62 56,478.73 712,212.05 -                    2,090,189.97   2,285,706.89 3,832,704.28    8,977,291.92

Total 3,565,139.42$  712,212.05$     3,824,518.95$  2,736,087.39$  2,090,189.97$ 2,285,706.89$  3,832,704.28$  19,046,558.95$      

(a)  The CD's are shown with interest that has been added to the principal balance.  The Police Pension investments are shown at market value as of April 30, 

2016.  The investments have been marked to market as of April 30, 2016 as of this report. The Police Pension Fund is the only fund allowed to invest in equities.

Page 

sgriffin
Typewritten Text

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
11



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF OUTSTANDING INVESTMENTS AS OF JUNE 30, 2016 6-Jul-16 EXHIBIT B

Vehicle

Certif Interest Purchase Maturity Investment Interest Current General Replace

# Nmbr Amount Rate Date Date Maturities Credited Book Value Fund Fund

NORTHERN TRUST BANK 

35551-5 1,015,362.25 0.095% 09/02/15 09/02/16 $481.06 $1,015,843.31 $1,015,843.31

35550-7 505,858.66 0.075% 11/05/15 08/01/16 $124.75 $505,983.41 $505,983.41

35549-11 503,178.32 0.075% 02/03/16 08/01/16 $31.02 $503,209.34 $503,209.34

SUBTOTAL INVESTMENTS--NORTHERN TRUST BANK $2,025,036.06 $2,025,036.06 $0.00

PRIVATE BANK - LAKE FOREST

52027-13 134,730.55 0.15% 7/8/2014 9/8/2015 (134,970.43) $239.88 ($0.00) ($0.00)

52027-14 134,970.43 0.15% 9/8/2015 11/8/2016 $102.37 $135,072.80 $135,072.80

SUBTOTAL INVESTMENTS--PRIVATE BANK $135,072.80 $135,072.80

LAKE FOREST BANK & TRUST

51371-31 460,514.35 0.15% 03/29/15 09/29/15 (460,862.68) $348.33 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

51371-32 460,862.68 0.15% 09/29/15 03/29/16 (461,207.49) $344.81 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

51371-33 461,207.49 0.15% 03/29/16 09/29/16 $58.76 $461,266.25 $307,738.84 $153,527.41

SUBTOTAL INVESTMENTS--LAKE FOREST BANK & TRUST $461,266.25 $307,738.84 $153,527.41

FIRST BANK & TRUST OF EVANSTON

601724631-16 113,948.63 0.325% 08/05/14 08/06/15 (114,319.52) $370.89 $0.00 $0.00

601724631-17 114,319.52 0.325% 08/06/15 08/05/16 $248.61 $114,568.13 $114,568.13

SUBTOTAL INVESTMENTS--FIRST BANK/EVANSTON $114,568.13 $0.00 $114,568.13

TOTAL INVESTMENTS -- CURRENT BALANCE $2,735,943.24 $2,467,847.70 $268,095.54

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
Page 12



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF EXHIBIT C

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT

For period ending June 30, 2016 FY2016-17

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year % of Budget Previous % of Budget FY15-16

Department Description Total-to-Date 16-17 Budget Used/Rec'd Fiscal YTD Used/Rec'd BUDGET

FUND NAME: GENERAL

Revenues

Property Taxes 1,496,813$    2,925,710$    51.2% 1,465,739$   50.4% 2,910,404$   

Sales Taxes 450,307         2,806,975      16.0% 367,343        13.6% 2,703,840     

Home Rule Sales Tax 90,000           780,825         11.5% 70,000          9.9% 707,840        

North Chicago Sales tax share -                 15,000           0.0% -                           --- 6,000            

Utility Taxes 79,337           717,200         11.1% 156,211        21.4% 729,945        

Other Taxes 182,582         785,115         23.3% 235,480        33.3% 707,050        

Vehicle Licenses 122,485         135,250         90.6% 120,136        88.8% 135,250        

Building Permits 122,773         510,000         24.1% 77,400          11.7% 660,000        

Demolition Permits 7,546             20,000           37.7% 9,529            28.7% 33,200          

Other Licenses & Permits 110,121         209,220         52.6% 106,738        56.4% 189,410        

Sewer Charge 24,918           170,000         14.7% 26,120          14.8% 176,000        

Services & Fees 855                35,250           2.4% 1,000            3.4% 29,475          

Fines 12,258           99,900           12.3% 10,832          11.4% 95,100          

Interest Earnings 3,335             10,500           31.8% 843               7.0% 12,000          

Grants -                 146,150         0.0% 940               0.3% 297,000        

Sale of Property -                 -                            --- -                           --- -                

Miscellaneous Revenue 43,410           369,674         11.7% 44,639          11.7% 380,402        

Operating Transfers In -                 -                            --- -                           --- -                

Total Revenues 2,746,738$    9,736,769$    28.2% 2,692,949$   27.6% 9,772,916$   

Expenditures

Administration 134,252$       1,387,551$    9.7% 94,955$        6.8% 1,393,173$   

Finance 63,380           615,202         10.3% 62,167          13.2% 470,225        

Community Development 45,192           364,770         12.4% 39,134          11.8% 331,620        

Boards & Commissions 17,225           65,575           26.3% 17,926          24.8% 72,200          

Village Hall 6,573             222,600         3.0% 6,088            5.4% 113,350        

Village Properties/Vacant Land 1,252             7,150             17.5% 1,498            21.0% 7,150            

   Total Administration 267,874$       2,662,848$    10.1% 221,768$      9.3% 2,387,718$   

Police Sworn 673,248$       2,978,915$    22.6% 648,544$      23.0% 2,822,935$   

Police Records 99,541           539,083         18.5% 168,391        34.7% 484,583        

Crossing Guards -                 -                            --- 1,740            #DIV/0! -                

Fire 45,345           728,160         6.2% 43,906          6.0% 733,149        

Public Safety Building 9,901             92,500           10.7% 9,136            10.7% 85,550          

  Total Public Safety 828,035$       4,338,658$    19.1% 871,717$      21.1% 4,126,217$   

Streets, Lighting 529,848$       1,364,892$    38.8% 57,161$        3.0% 1,918,100$   

Sanitation 98,628           603,513         16.3% 95,127          15.8% 603,575        

Forestry 29,871           195,145         15.3% 21,400          11.4% 187,827        

Parks/Parkways/Ravines 16,456           201,015         8.2% 15,843          7.1% 222,385        

Sewers 28,656           662,735         4.3% 17,879          3.6% 489,865        

Public Works Facility 6,513             78,000           8.3% 5,223            9.8% 53,525          

Commuter Station 10,764           91,420           11.8% 9,057            10.2% 88,928          

   Total Public Works 720,734$       3,196,720$    22.5% 221,691$      6.2% 3,564,205$   

Total Expenditures 1,816,643$    10,198,226$  17.8% 1,315,176$   13.0% 10,078,140$ 

Page

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
13



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF EXHIBIT C

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT

For period ending June 30, 2016 FY2016-17

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year % of Budget Previous % of Budget FY15-16

Department Description Total-to-Date 16-17 Budget Used/Rec'd Fiscal YTD Used/Rec'd BUDGET

FUND NAME: GENERAL

Expenditures by Type

Salaries, Benefits, Insurance 628,754$       4,153,133$    15.1% 584,397$      14.7% 3,963,444$   

Contractual & Commodities 332,069         2,888,305      11.5% 382,706        13.3% 2,870,203     

Interfund Transfers Out 343,955         1,177,218      29.2% 338,227        29.2% 1,159,643     

Contingency -                 200,000         0.0% -                0.0% 200,000        

    Total Operating Expenditures 1,304,779$    8,418,656$    15.5% 1,305,331$   15.9% 8,193,290$   

Capital & Land Acquisition 511,865         1,779,570      28.8% 9,846            0.5% 1,884,850     

Total Expenditures 1,816,643$    10,198,226$  17.8% 1,315,176$   13.0% 10,078,140$ 

FUND NAME: WATER

Revenues

Water Sales 172,068$       1,258,930$    13.7% 180,874$      13.2% 1,365,120$   

Connection Fees 6,400             22,000           29.1% 7,200            32.7% 22,000          

Meter Sales 2,870             3,000             95.7% 800               12.3% 6,500            

Other Fees -                 100                0.0% -                         ---- 150               

Interest Earnings 586                2,000             29.3% 315               15.8% 2,000            

Miscellaneous Revenue 165                450                36.6% 81                 18.0% 450               

IRMA Surplus Credit -                 -                        ---- -                         ---- 3,000            

Interfund Operating Transfr -                 -                        ---- -                         ---- -                

Total Revenues 182,089$       1,286,480$    14.2% 189,270$      13.5% 1,399,220$   

Expenses

Salaries & Benefits 38,226$         267,250$       14.3% 35,227$        13.7% 256,281$      

IMRF -                     21,800           0.0% -                0.0% 25,200          

FICA/Medicare -                     15,400           0.0% -                0.0% 13,900          

Water Purchases 113,251         616,600         18.4% 105,273        16.8% 628,125        

Contractual & Commodities 5,940             112,500         5.3% 4,817            5.0% 96,845          

Debt Interest Payment
a

25,122           220,744         0.0% 26,772          0.0% 219,044        

Contingency -                     50,000           0.0% -                0.0% 50,000          

Interfund Transfers Out -                     15,000           0.0% -                0.0% 15,000          

Capital Equipment -                     375,000                 ---- -                        ---- 300,000        

Capital Infrastructure -                     400,000                 ---- 16,562                  ---- 40,000          

Total Expenses before Depreciation 182,539$       2,094,294$    8.7% 188,651$      11.5% 1,644,395$   

Depreciation Expense -                -                

Total Expenses After Depreciation 182,539$       2,094,294$    8.7% 188,651$      11.5% 1,644,395$   

a
Debt principal payment is adjusted from expense to a reduction in the Bonds Payable on the balance sheet in April each year.

Page

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
14



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF EXHIBIT C

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT

For period ending June 30, 2016 FY2016-17

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year % of Budget Previous % of Budget FY15-16

Department Description Total-to-Date 16-17 Budget Used/Rec'd Fiscal YTD Used/Rec'd BUDGET

SPECIAL REVENUE, CAPITAL PROJECTS, DEBT SERVICE FUNDS & POLICE PENSION TRUST

FUND NAME: IMRF

Revenues 78,489$         156,060$       50.3% 77,027$        50.1% 153,790$      

Expenditures IMRF on Water Salaries in Water Fund 26,894$         158,084$       17.0% 26,680$        16.9% 158,250$      

FUND NAME: SOCIAL SECURITY

Revenues 100,914$       199,770$       50.5% 97,501$        50.2% 194,050$      

Expenditures FICA on Water Salaries chg to Wtr Fnd 41,578$         236,648$       17.6% 38,702$        15.8% 245,525$      

FUND NAME: SPECIAL FIRE INS TAX

Revenues -$               27,565$         0.0% -$              0.0% 27,415$        

Expenditures -$               31,700$         0.0% -$              0.0% 31,700$        

FUND NAME: MOTOR FUEL TAX

Revenues & Transfers In from General 25,125$         132,545$       19.0% 23,506$        13.7% 171,045$      

Expenditures -$               -$                       ---- -$                         --- -$              

FUND NAME: E911 SURCHARGE

Revenues 5,905$           78,530$         7.5% 13,634$        17.4% 78,530$        

Expenditures 9,873$           52,213$         18.9% 617$             0.4% 141,942$      

FUND NAME: VEHICLE/EQUIP REPLACE

Revenues & Transfers In 371$              294,700$       0.1% 24$               0.0% 279,300$      

Capital Equipment Expenditures 6,844$           132,000$       5.2% -$              0.0% 194,750$      

FUND NAME: REDEVELOPMENT PROGRAM 

Revenues & Transfers In 46$                5$                  920.0% 10$               100.0% 10$               

Expenditures -$               250,000$       0.0% -$              0.0% 95,000$        

Revenues from this account are reimbursements for grants for the Route 41/176 Interchange project.

FUND NAME: 2012 REFUNDING BONDS

Revenues & Transfers In from General Fund 10,746$         251,493$       4.3% 11,896$        4.7% 254,293$      

Expenditures - Bond Payments 10,746$         251,743$       4.3% 11,896$        4.7% 254,293$      

FUND NAME: POLICE PENSION TRUST

Additions 380,960$       1,170,100$    32.6% 375,178$      38.4% 976,295$      

Deductions 147,759$       824,750$       17.9% 137,197$      16.1% 851,700$      

Page

sgriffin
Typewritten Text
15



 
VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 

REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 
 

                               Agenda Item: 11 

 
Subject: 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN ILLINOIS ELEVATOR SAFETY 
PROGRAM AGREEMENT AND AUTHORIZING CERTAIN 
ELEVATOR SAFETY STANDARDS 

 
Action Requested: 

 
ADOPTION OF THE RESOLUTION 

 
Originated By: 

 
BUILDING CODES SUPERVISOR 

 
Referred To:  

 
VILLAGE BOARD 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request:   

The Village of Lake Bluff operates an Elevator Safety Program wherein the Village assumes the 
responsibility for elevator plan review and inspection from the Office of the State Fire Marshall 
and, in turn, the Village contracts with Elevator Inspection Services to have those plan reviews and 
inspections performed. 
 
In order to operate a municipal Elevator Inspection Program, the Village must enter into an Illinois 
Elevator Safety Program Agreement with the Office of the State Fire Marshall. Our most recent 
agreement was approved on February 11, 2013.  Attached is the latest agreement from the Office of 
the State Fire Marshall. 
 
The Joint Plan Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals recently made a recommendation, as part 
of their recommendation for approval of a Special Use Permit for a tram on the lake bluff at 611 
Lansdowne Lane, that the annual elevator inspection requirement be broadened to include outdoor 
trams.  This recommendation will be brought to the Board for discussion at a future meeting. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

1. A Resolution Approving an Illinois Elevator Safety Program Agreement and Authorizing 
Certain Elevator Safety Standards; 

2. Illinois Elevator Safety Program Agreement; and 
3. Letter from Elevator Inspection Services. 

 
 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation:  Adoption of the Resolution 

 
 

 
Date Referred to Village Board: 

 
7/11/2016 

















VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

 
               Agenda Item: 12 

 
 
Subject: 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF TWO FORD 
POLICE VEHICLES AND THE DECLARATION OF TWO 
CHEVROLET SQUAD CARS AS SURPLUS PROPERTY 

Action 
Requested: 

 
APPROVAL AND AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE 

 
Originated By: 

 
CHIEF OF POLICE 

 
Referred To:  

 
VILLAGE BOARD 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request: 
 
The Village’s FY2016-17 budget provides $65,000 in funding for the replacement of two police 
vehicles pursuant to the vehicle and equipment replacement schedule. The Suburban Purchasing 
Cooperative awarded the bid to Currie Motors of Frankfort, Illinois for Ford Interceptor (Taurus-
style) police package vehicles in the amount of $24,683 per vehicle. In addition, it costs $6,000 
to install standard police equipment in each vehicle.  The total cost for the two squad cars and 
required equipment installation is $61,366.  
 
These Ford vehicles will replace two 2012 Chevrolet Impala squad cars which have high mileage 
and require extensive repairs. The Police Chief and Finance Director recommend approval of the 
purchase of two Ford Interceptor police package vehicles and the declaration of two 2012 
Chevrolet Impala vehicles as surplus property. 
 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 

 A copy of the Resolution. 
 
Village President’s Recommendation: 
 
 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation: 
 
 
Date Referred to Village Board: 7/11/2016 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016- 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF  
TWO FORD POLICE PACKAGE VEHICLES AND THE DECLARATION  

OF TWO SQUAD CARS AS SURPLUS PROPERTY 
 

 WHEREAS, the Village’s Purchasing Policy and Procedures Manual (“Manual”) requires the 
solicitation of competitive bids for purchases in excess of $20,000; however, Section 7 of the Manual 
states that joint purchasing satisfies the requirement for bidding; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the approved Fiscal Year 2016-17 Annual Budget provides funding in the amount of 
$65,000 for the purchase of two replacement police vehicles; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the Suburban Purchasing Cooperative has awarded bids for Ford police package 
vehicles to Currie Motors of Frankfort, Illinois at a bid amount of $24,683 per vehicle. An additional cost 
of $6,000 per vehicle is required to have an approved vendor install police package equipment; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the purchase of two replacement vehicles will cause two Chevrolet Impala squad 
cars to become surplus property; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Police Chief and the Director of Finance recommend that the Village Board 
approve the purchase of two Ford police package vehicles and the installation of equipment in the total 
amount of $61,366; and, 
  
 WHEREAS, the Village Board has determined that adopting this Resolution is in the best 
interests of the residents of the Village. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1.  RECITALS. 
 
 The foregoing recitals are hereby adopted as the findings of the President and Board of Trustees. 
 
 SECTION 2.  AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE TWO POLICE VEHICLES. 

 
The Village Administrator is hereby authorized to purchase two Ford police package vehicles 

from Currie Motors of Frankfort, Illinois, in accordance with the specifications at a cost not to exceed 
$49,366 and to engage an approved vendor to install police package equipment at a cost not to exceed 
$12,000. 
 

SECTION 3.  DETERMINATION OF SURPLUS PROPERTY. 
 
Pursuant to 65 ILCS 5/11-76-4 and the home rule powers of the Village, the President and Board 

of Trustees of the Village of Lake Bluff hereby determine that the following personal property is no 
longer necessary or useful to the Village and that the best interests of the Village will be served by its 
disposal: 

 2012 Chevrolet Impala  VIN # 2G1WD5E35C1184027 
 2012 Chevrolet Impala  VIN #2G1WD5E39C1185777 
 



FY2016-17 Police Vehicles Purchase  Resolution #2016- 

SECTION 3.  AUTHORIZATION FOR DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY. 
 
  The President and Board of Trustees of the Village hereby authorize the Village 
Administrator to dispose of the two Chevrolet Impala squad cars by trade-in, auction, or sale in the 
manner most advantageous to the Village. 

 
 SECTION 4.  EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 This Resolution shall be effective following passage by the Board of Trustees of the Village of 
Lake Bluff in the manner required by law. 
 
PASSED this ____ day of July, 2016, by vote of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Lake Bluff as 
follows:  
 
AYES:  ( )   
 
NAYS:  ( ) 
 
ABSENT:  ( )   
 
 
Approved this   
 
  

________________________________ 
Village President 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Village Clerk 



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

                                                                            
             Agenda Item: 13 

 
 
 
Subject: 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH LYNN MONTEI ASSOCIATES FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 
VILLAGE STRATEGIC PLAN    

 
Action Requested: 

 
CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION (Roll Call Vote) 

 
Originated By: 

 
VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND VILLAGE STAFF 

 
Referred To:  

 
VILLAGE BOARD 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request:   
 
In December 2010, following a community-wide engagement of various Lake Bluff stakeholders, the Village 
Board adopted Lake Bluff’s first ever Strategic Plan – an organizational blue print that has helped define the 
direction of the Village and assist in how resources have been allocated over the past five years.  The Village 
President and Village Administrator believe this community-driven approach has served the Village well and 
both recommend taking a similar path to develop a new strategic plan for the next five years.  To that end, 
Village has solicited a proposal from Lynn Montei Associates (LMA) to facilitate an update and refresh to the 
community vision and design a strategy to achieve it. As you may recall, LMA facilitated the most recent 
strategic planning effort in late 2010 and was very well received by the community and stakeholder 
participants.  The proposed scope of work includes but is not limited to the following components: 

 Engage a guidance team comprised of up to 10 diverse stakeholders for advice, guidance and to enhance 
stakeholder representation; 

 Conduct thought-leader interviews; 
 Host stakeholder workshop for system connection, visioning, data generation, etc.; 
 Perform analysis and plan development with a resident synthesis team; 
 Review the preliminary draft plan in Village Board Committee of the Whole meeting; 
 Host public review of the draft plan at an open-invitation community dialogue session; and 
 Design a dashboard of key outcomes and measures that will serve as a companion to the strategic plan. 

 
Village Staff is recommending all elements of the proposal be authorized (except for the staff workshop 
component) which will result in an anticipated total cost of $22,35  0.  Village Staff believe this more robust 
scope of work (compared to the previous strategic planning facilitation engagement) is appropriate given it will 
provide (i) the opportunity for greater stakeholder participation and diversity and (ii) community created 
metrics to monitor plan implementation. 
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 

1. A copy of the Resolution; and 
2. A copy of the proposed Professional Services Agreement with Lynn Montei Associates  
3. A copy of the 2016 Strategic Plan 

 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation:      Adoption of Resolution  
 
Date Referred to Village Board: 7/11/2016 
 



cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1







cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2

















































Lake Bluf f Description
Incorporated in 1895, Lake Bluff, is an inviting North Shore suburb of Chicago and

was noted as one of the Top 20 Great Towns and Neighborhoods by Chicago Mag-

azine (April 2010). Located in southeast Lake County, it is a Village that offers ex-

ceptional New England-like charm, a high quality of life, fine residential

neighborhoods, and high performing public schools. The shores of Lake Michigan

and the many activity trails throughout the community offer distinctive recre-

ational opportunities. Lake Bluff has a daytime service population of approximately 7,600 and a full

time population just over 6,000. It is home to a thriving downtown and in close proximity to major in-

ternational businesses and transportation networks.

Mission/Purpose Statement
The expression of purpose is that for which all actions, commitments and resources are in service.

The Village of Lake Bluff provides visionary stewardship, effective services

and a culture of involvement to maintain and enhance our quality of life

and to honor our legacy.

Guiding Principles
These shared values are embraced by the Village and all its stakeholders, serve as guideposts that

describe conduct and behavior in all circumstances and apply to everyone without exception.

In Lake Bluff we…

V
illa

g
e
o
f
L
a
k
e
B
lu
ff
Stra

te
g
ic
P
la
n

1

• Serve as fiscally responsible stewards of

Village resources

• Treat each other with civility and respect

• Act with integrity and accountability

• Embrace volunteerism and community

participation

• Cherish our history while preparing for our

future

• Hold special regard for our community’s

children and seniors

• Appreciate neighborliness

• Respect the natural environment

• Retain our small-town atmosphere

• Engage in open communication and

transparency

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 3



Vision for 2016
Vision Statements should be bold, compelling, ennobling and inspire others to take part, move to town,

do business, shop or play in the Village.

We envision the Village of Lake Bluff as a community where:

• Unparalleled quality of life across all neighborhoods fosters stability and well-being for our

stakeholders

• Engagement and volunteerism are the essence of our community culture

• High-quality, cost-effective municipal services meet community needs and position the Village for

future success

• Our business climate sustains a robust and stable local economy

• People move with ease on foot, bicycle and by automobile in a safe, accessible and well-

connected system of sidewalks, paths and roads

• Housing stock diversity and strong property values serve residents at all stages of life

• Environmental stewardship enhances the natural beauty of the community

Strategies for Vision Attainment
To move strategically toward attainment of each Vision, the Village of Lake Bluff and its

stakeholders will employ these initial goals and strategies.

Unparalleled quality of life across all neighborhoods fosters stability
and well being for our stakeholders.

Goal 1: Create an environment that fosters resident creativity, enthusiasm and

initiative.

• Invite participation and shared leadership

• Create opportunities for community-wide dialogue

• Model a standard of civility in public discourse

• Respect cultural diversity

Goal 2: Heighten the community’s sense of connection and shared values.

• Utilize public spaces to cultivate community connectedness

• Participate in programs that promote wellness

• Identify and assist people in need

Goal 3: Place special attention on our youth, seniors and the benefits of

intergenerational connection.

• Link with community resources and partners to support youth and senior services

• Facilitate youth and senior engagement in the life of the Lake Bluff community

• Cultivate opportunities for intergenerational experience

V
illa

g
e
o
f
L
a
k
e
B
lu
ff
Stra

te
g
ic
P
la
n

2

Quality

of Life



Engagement and volunteerism are the essence of our community culture.

Goal 1: Cultivate awareness and appeal of the Village’s volunteer traditions.

• Articulate the mutual benefits to the individual and the community

• Enrichment, opportunity and personal satisfaction to individual

• Value to the community in terms of quality, vitality and cost savings

• Volunteers essential to ensuring the sustainability of the Fire Department

• Recognize and celebrate the contributions of volunteers

Goal 2: Create a new and viable volunteer model that accommodates

contemporary life.

• Create a task force comprised of diverse stakeholders and all village partners in

model development

• Include a wide range of volunteer commitment levels

• Create entry level choices for newcomers and youth

• Utilize guiding principles to set the standard of conduct and behavior

• Simplify and increase transparency of elected and volunteer recruitment

process

• Consider a structure to coordinate volunteer activities and needs

• Inform the community on the essential role volunteers fill

• Create a marketing and recruitment plan

High-quality, cost-effectivemunicipal servicesmeet community needs and
position the Village for future success.

Goal 1: Ensure a sound and stable fiscal condition that matches resources with

community needs.

• Educate the community about municipal services, legal obligations and associated

revenue sources

• Enumerate municipal functions of public works, police protection, fire protection

(volunteer), building, administration and finance

V
illa

g
e
o
f
L
a
k
e
B
lu
ff
Stra

te
g
ic
P
la
n

Volunteerism

Municipal

Services

3



• Identify, implement and monitor the optimal balance between community

needs/desired levels of service and available resources

• Identify what services stakeholders consider essential

• Develop additional sources of revenue, such as user fees

Goal 2: Explore cost saving alternatives.

• Collaborate with other municipalities, taxing bodies and private sector partners to

identify and advance shared services opportunities

• Expand use of purchasing consortia for various products and services

• Continue to identify and implement reductions in operating expenses

• Use the insight of employees to innovate and contain costs

• Seek and utilize cost effective service delivery alternatives

• Expand use of purchasing consortia for various products and services

Goal 3: Maintain sound infrastructure, facilities and other capital assets.

• Annually review and adhere to the Capital Improvement Plan

• Consult the Strategic and Comprehensive Plans to guide planning and

capital investments

Goal 4: Maintain our commitment to public safety.

Goal 5: Expand the use of technology to improve service, increase communication

and cost effectiveness.

• Explore the use of social media

• Enhance the website

Our business climate sustains a robust and stable local economy.

Goal 1: Create a sustainable revenue base.

• Develop a marketing plan

• Explore strategic annexation of commercial properties located at the northeast

quadrant of US 41/ IL Rt 176, IL Rt 43 and the IL Rt 176 corridor

• Further engage local businesses and business groups in dialogue to retain existing

and attract new business

• Reposition the Business Parks for the new economy

• Re-examine highest and best uses of business parks

• Improve access to and within the Business Park

Goal 2: Foster a business friendly environment.

• Streamline the business development process

• Evaluate codes and explore zoning techniques

• Strengthen our Central Business District

• Complete the downtown streetscape and integrate the Train Station

• Facilitate more seasonal events

• Maintain relationships with the auto park community

V
illa

g
e
o
f
L
a
k
e
B
lu
ff
Stra

te
g
ic
P
la
n

4

Business

Environment



People move with ease on foot, bicycle and by automobile in a safe,
accessible and well-connected system of sidewalks, paths and roads.

Goal 1: Develop a master plan for all desired transportation improvements.

• Perform needs analysis to improve accessibility and enhance safety

• Consider the following for inclusion in the master plan

• Sidewalk extensions and pedestrian ramp cuts at key village intersections

• Improvement of the East Sheridan Rd./ Moffett Rd. intersection

• Expansion of walking and bike paths

• Feasibility study of a second east-west transportation corridor from Green Bay

Rd. to Sheridan Rd.

• Train station traffic flow improvements

• Completion of planning and design of the US 41/ IL Rt 176 intersection

Goal 2: Pursue federal, state and private funding for accessibility and transportation

improvements.

Goal 3: Cultivate working relationships with all transportation agencies and providers.

Goal 4: Reduce the overall number of vehicular traffic movements.

• Encourage walking, biking, carpooling and increased use of public transportation

• Explore the expansion of public transportation opportunities

Housing stock diversity and strong property values serve residents at all
stages of life.

Goal 1: Assess the balance of housing types that will meet the needs and desires

of our community.

• Review all existing plans and regulations for compatibility with identified needs and

retention of community character

V
illa

g
e
o
f
L
a
k
e
B
lu
ff
Stra

te
g
ic
P
la
n

5

Accessibility/

Transportation

Housing

Diversity



• Develop a senior housing plan to address our current and future senior housing needs

• Review the Affordable Housing Plan to ascertain its compatibility with community

needs

Goal 2: Educate the community and the individual homeowner on the benefits of

historic preservation.

Environmental stewardship enhances the natural beauty
of the community.

Goal 1: Take the initiative to prioritize and advance environmental stewardship.

• Assess the community’s preference as to the natural environment’s level of priority

• Educate the community on methods to utilize environmentally conscious behaviors

• Publicize current and past successes at advancing environmental stewardship

• Enlist volunteers to maintain litter-free streets and blocks

• Identify incentives and building codes that encourage green building

Goal 2: Enhance the quality of public and private open spaces.

• Partner with the Park District to improve access and aesthetics of the lakefront

and ravines

• Educate the public regarding native plantings

• Increase the number of quality trees and expand on the Tree City USA program

Goal 3: Maintain and enhance recycling efforts.

• Place recycling bins in and around town

• Maintain Village Public Works Recycling/Waste Facility

• Incent businesses to recycle

• Monitor existing recycling regulations

• Encourage environmental practices at home

Goal 4: Explore alternative energy regulations for residential and commercial uses.

V
illa

g
e
o
f
L
a
k
e
B
lu
ff
Stra

te
g
ic
P
la
n

6

Environment/
Green

Initiatives



V
illa

g
e
o
f
L
a
k
e
B
lu
ff
Stra

te
g
ic
P
la
n

7

Stakeholder Inventory
A stakeholder list was created by the Steering Committee to bring to mind the spectrum of perspectives

and interests present in the Village’s “system.” It was generated by answering three questions:Who does

the Village serve? Whose support does it need? Who is impacted by its work? Participants made several

additions to the list which now reads as follows:

Residents
• Seniors
• New
• School Age Parents
• Newcomers
• DINKs
• Youth
• Empty Nesters
• Geographic locations
Taxpayers
Not for profit organizations
Parade Committee
Vliet Museum
Garden Club
Women’s Club
LF/LB Chamber of Commerce
Open Lands Association
Farmers Market
Committee/Users
Artists on the Bluff
Volunteer Fire Department
Churches (2), Beach Church (1)
Other Local Governments
• Library
• School District #115 Lake
Forest High School

• School District #65
• Park District
• Shields Township
• CLCJAWA

American Legion
Rotary Club
Kiwanis
Boy Scouts
Lions Club
Lake Bluff BBQ Society
Lake Bluff Baseball Association
Hospital (NWLFH)
Downtown Merchants
PTO
Forest Bluff Montessori
Boards and Commissions
• Plan Commission
• Zoning Board of Appeals
• Architectural Board of Review
• Board of Fire and Police
• Police Pension Fund Board
• Historic Preservation
Commission

• Senior Resources Commission
• CROYA
The Lake Bluff Caucus
Business
• Large Employers
• CBD & Other small employers
• Geographic locations
• Type (Auto, retail, food, etc.)
Major Employers

Surrounding Communities
• Lake Forest
• North Chicago
• Knollwood
Employees
• Public Works
Trustees
Public Safety
Trustee/Elected Officials
Alumni
Realtors
Contractors
Preservationists
Commuters
Great Lakes Naval Station
Homeowner Associations
• The Sanctuary
• Tangley Oaks
• Armour Woods
• Belle Foret
Lake Bluff Yacht Club
Building Community
Media



The Village is grateful to the following individuals who participated in the Stakeholder Workshops:

V
illa

g
e
o
f
L
a
k
e
B
lu
ff
Stra

te
g
ic
P
la
n

8

Phyllis Albrecht

Brad Andersen

Barbara Ankenman

Betty Frank-Bailey

David Barkhausen

Michael Barrett

Mary Jane Brady

Marina Carney

Mary Collins

Kevin Considine

Mark Dewart

Rina Du Toit

Adrienne Fawcett

David Forlow

Peter Friedman

William Gallagher

David Graf

Susan Griffin

Robert Hertel

Drew Irvin

John Josephitis

Michael Klawitter

Paul Lemieux

Rick Lesser

Christine Letchinger

Thomas McAfee

Simon Moughamian

Elliot Miller

Gerald Nellessen

Janet Nelson

Matt Nielsen

Kathleen O'Hara

Edward Pasquesi

Craig Pierson

George Russell

Jim Seymour

Brandon Stanick

Jake Terlap

David Thomas

Ryan Waller

Project Facilitator:

Lynn Montei

Photography:

Gunnar Soderlind

Design:

Lynne Grenier



 
 

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

             
                               Agenda Item: 14 

 
Subject: 

 
A RESOLUTION TERMINATING THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT THAT CREATED THE LAKE AND MCHENRY COUNTIES 
FIRE DEPARTMENTS SPECIALIZED RESPONSE TEAMS 

 
Action Requested: 

 
ADOPTION OF THE RESOLUTION 

 
Originated By: 

 
FIRE CHIEF DAVID GRAF 

 
Referred To:  

 
VILLAGE BOARD 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request:   
 
As you know, MABAS is a statewide mutual aid system which has been in existence since the late 1960s. 
Originally, MABAS was heavily rooted throughout northern Illinois but since September 11th MABAS 
has rapidly grown throughout the State of Illinois as well as Wisconsin, Indiana and Michigan and parts 
of Iowa and Missouri. Day-to-day MABAS extra alarms are systematically designed to provide speed of 
response of emergency resources to the stricken community during an ongoing emergency. Declarations 
of Disaster provide a MABAS sustained system of response on top of daily mutual aid activations. Today 
MABAS includes approximately 1,175 of the state’s 1,246 fire departments organized within 69 
divisions. MABAS also offers specialized operations teams for hazardous materials (40 teams), 
underwater rescue/recovery (15 teams), technical rescue (39 teams) and a state sponsored urban search 
and rescue team.  Late last year the Lake & McHenry Counties Fire Departments Specialized Response 
Teams (SRT) processed a governance change and, as of January 1, 2016, it became the MABAS 
Divisions 4 & 5 SRT.  The goal of this governance change was to align the organization with the MABAS 
model to take advantage of available training, equipment and resource opportunities.  All SRT member 
units of government have been asked to pass a resolution acknowledging the cancellation of the current 
SRT organization.  To that end, the attached resolution (i) formally dissolves the current SRT 
organization by terminating the intergovernmental agreement that originally created it in 1996 and (ii) 
authorizes the Village Administrator to execute all necessary documents to effectuate the termination.   
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 
 

 A Resolution Terminating the IGA that Created the Lake and McHenry Counties Fire 
Departments SRT with Exhibits 

 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation:   Approval of the Resolution 
 

 Date Referred to Village Board: 7/11/2016 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-___ 

A RESOLUTION TERMINATING THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT THAT 
CREATED THE LAKE AND MCHENRY COUNTIES FIRE DEPARTMENTS 

SPECIALIZED RESPONSE TEAMS 
 

 WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Illinois, 1970, Article VII, Section 10, 
authorizes units of local government to contract or otherwise associate among themselves in 
any manner not prohibited by law or ordinance; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.) 
provides that any power or powers, privileges or authority exercised or which may be exercised 
by a unit of local government may be exercised jointly with any other unit of local government or 
private corporation; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Intergovernmental Cooperation Act provides that any one or 
more public agencies may contract with any one or more public agencies to perform any 
governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the public agencies entering into the 
contract is authorized by law to perform, provided that such contract shall be authorized by the 
governing body of each party to the contract; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Fire Protection District Act (70 ILCS 705/11a) provides that a fire 

protection district may contract for mutual aid from and to governmental units organized to 
furnish fire protection services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/I-1-5) authorizes the corporate 

authorities of a municipality to exercise jointly all powers which it possesses; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lake and McHenry Counties Fire Departments Specialized 

Response Teams (“SRT”) was originally organized as the Lake County Fire Departments 
Specialized Response Teams through intergovernmental agreement in 1996; and 

 
WHEREAS, the SRT membership was expanded in 2005-06 through a revised 

intergovernmental agreement to include fire departments from McHenry County and the SRT 
name was changed to the Lake and McHenry Counties Fire Departments Specialized Response 
Teams and has operated the SRT since; and   

 
WHEREAS, the SRT is administered by an Executive Committee composed of 

the Fire Chiefs (or other representative designated by the member unit of government) of each 
member unit of government; and 

 
WHEREAS, various public agencies in Illinois, Wisconsin, Missouri, Michigan, 

Indiana and Iowa have federated together through the aforementioned Acts and Agreements to 
form the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (“MABAS”); and  

 
WHEREAS, MABAS is divided into operational Divisions, generally based on 

geographic regions, to facilitate day-to-day operations and develop local policy and procedures; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, MABAS Division 4, comprised generally of fire departments (Units) 

in Lake County, Illinois, is duly authorized by MABAS-IL as a Division; and  
 



 2

WHEREAS, MABAS Division 5, comprised generally of fire departments (Units) 
in McHenry County, Illinois, is duly authorized by MABAS-IL as a Division; and 

 
WHEREAS, MABAS-IL has agreed to individually recognize SRT related 

response teams for both MABAS Divisions 4 & 5 which will provide for insurance coverage, 
equipment and training for SRT functions within each respective MABAS Division, increasing 
the SRT response capabilities in both Divisions; and 

 
WHEREAS, the SRT Executive Committee has determined that it is in the best 

interest of the SRT to transfer apparatus, equipment and funding from the SRT to the respective 
MABAS Divisions to take advantage of the insurance, equipment and training available through 
MABAS-IL; and 

 
WHEREAS, the SRT was a trendsetting organization at the time of its original 

establishment in 1996, however the SRT response model has shifted throughout the state of 
Illinois to a MABAS Division based model; and 

 
WHEREAS, Divisions 4 and 5 have independently determined that it is in their 

best interests to accept the apparatus, equipment and funding from the SRT and to establish an 
intergovernmental specialized response teams joint administrative council to coordinate training, 
response procedures and equipment on behalf of both the MABAS Division 4 & 5 SRT teams as 
witnessed by the execution of the MABAS DIVISIONS 4 & 5 SPECIALIZED RESPONSE 
TEAMS MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT that has been attached as Exhibit A; and 

 
WHEREAS, the SRT through prior resolution has transferred apparatus, 

equipment and funding to MABAS Divisions 4 & 5 through Resolution 2015-2 that has been 
adopted through majority vote of the SRT Executive Committee and is included as Exhibit B; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the SRT through prior resolution has provided for the termination of 

the SRT operations and responsibilities, transferring said operations and responsibilities to 
MABAS Divisions 4 & 5 and the newly created SRT Joint Administrative Council, through 
Resolution 2015-3 that has been adopted through majority vote of the SRT Executive 
Committee and is included as Exhibit C; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Village Board of Trustees has determined that it is in the best 

interest of the Village to approve this Resolution.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 

OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 
 

 Section 1.   Recitals.   
 
 The foregoing recitals are incorporated into, and made a part of, this Resolution 

as findings of the Village Board. 
 

Section 2. Termination of SRT. 

A. The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this Resolution. 
 
B. It is recognized, and specifically approved by this unit of government and 

member of the SRT, that as of January 1, 2016, the intergovernmental agreement as amended 
which created the Lake and McHenry Counties Fire Departments Specialized Response Teams 



 3

shall terminate, and all responsibilities regarding the routine operation and coordination of the 
SRT shall be transferred to the newly formed SRT Joint Administrative Council. 

C. All records, reports and information in the possession of the SRT will be 
transferred to the newly formed SRT Joint Administrative Council. 

 
D. Future payments for SRT related operations will be directed to the 

appropriate MABAS Division in lieu of the SRT. 
 
E. Upon the conclusion of all required actions to terminate the SRT, the 

Lake and McHenry Counties Specialized Response Teams Mutual Aid Agreement shall be 
considered terminated, null and void. 

 
F. The invalidity of any provision of this Resolution shall not render invalid 

any other provision. If, for any reason, any provision of this Resolution is determined by a Court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, that provision shall be deemed 
severable, and this Resolution may be enforced with that provision severed or as modified by 
court order. 
 

Section 3. Execution of Documents.  The Village Administrator is hereby 
authorized to execute all documents necessary to effectuate Section 2 of this Resolution. 

 
Section 4. Effective Date.  This Resolution will be effective upon passage by 

the President and Board of Trustees in the manner required by law. 

 

PASSED this ___ day of ___________, 2016, by vote of the Board of Trustees of the Village of 
Lake Bluff, as follows: 
 
AYES:  ()  

NAYS:  ()  

ABSTAIN: ()  

ABSENT: ()  

APPROVED this ____ day of _________, 2016. 
 
               
       Village President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Village Clerk 
 
 



 4

 
Exhibit A 

 
 
 

 
 



 5

Exhibit B 
 



 6

Exhibit C 
 

 



MABAS DIVISIONS 4 & 5 

SPECIALIZED RESPONSE TEAMS 


MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT 


This Agreement is made and entered into on the dates set forth next to the signature of 
each party hereto, by and between the Mutual Aid Box Alarm System - Illinois (MABAS-IL) 
Divisions 4 and 5 (Divisions), and any subsequent Divisions, which have approved this 
Agreement in the manner provided by the law, and have subscribed hereto creating an 
intergovernmental mutual aid committee by and between these units of government as further 
enumerated herein (the "SRT Joint Administrative Council"). 

WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Illinois, 1970, Article VII, Section 10, 
authorizes units of local government to contract or otherwise associate among themselves in any 
manner not prohibited by law or ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 22011 et seq.) provides that 
any power or powers, privileges or authority exercised or which may be exercised by a unit of 
local government may be exercised jointly with any other unit of local government or private 
corporation; and 

WHEREAS, The Intergovernmental Cooperation Act provides that anyone or more 
public agencies may contract with anyone or more public agencies to perform any governmental 
service, activity or undertaking which any of the public agencies entering into the contract is 
authorized by law to perform, provided that such contract shall be authorized by the governing 
body of each party to the contract; and 

WHEREAS, the Fire Protection District Act (70 ILCS 705111 a) provides that a fire 
protection district may contract for mutual aid from and to governmental units organized to 
furnish fire protection services; and 

WHEREAS, the Municipal Code (65 ILCS 51I-1-5) authorizes the corporate authorities 
of a municipality to exercise jointly all powers which it possesses; and 

WHEREAS, various public agencies in Illinois, Wisconsin, Missouri, Michigan, Indiana 
and Iowa have federated together through the aforementioned Acts and Agreements to form the 
Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS); and 

WHEREAS, MABAS is divided into operational Divisions, generally based on 
geographic regions to facilitate day-to-day operations and develop local policy and procedures; 
and 

WHEREAS, MABAS Division 4, comprised generally of fire departments (Units) in 
Lake County, Illinois, is duly authorized by MABAS-IL as a Division; and 

WHEREAS, MABAS Division 5, comprised generally of fire depmiments (Units) in 
McHemy County, Illinois, is duly authorized by MABAS-IL as a Division; and 



it is in to 
teams council to enter 

into this to secure coordination of training, equipment and resources to support the 
Divisions' specialized response and 

NOW, THEREFORE, consideration of foregoing recitals, the Division's 
membership in Joint Administrative Council, and the covenants contained, the 
MABAS hereto as follows: 

SECTION I 


PURPOSE AND INTENT 


The Divisions and that in such as, but not 
limited to, emergencies, natural and man-made catastrophes, joint use 

equipment to perform response both within and outside the territorial limits 
the Divisions is and necessary to and efficiently preserve and protect the 
health, and the Further, it is acknowledged that coordination of 

teams training, equipment and resources is desirable the and 
of public health and 

purpose this coordination training, 
resources equipment for including but not limited to, 
space rescue, below ground/trench rescue, hazardous response, water 

<AU'-'H,>. rope rescue, structural rescue, wildland firefighting forces, mechanics 
and support the Divisions' member units in certain where aid isCUU.LlVl'" 

desirable to best serve the of the the property, 
and of public within Divisions or 

territory as may Divisions, or their member hereafter. 

capabilities to the 
capabilities shall set forth in policy by 

CU",TWH'"Pri by the member Divisions. 

In addition, SRT Joint Administrative Council may facilitate joint purchasing or 
collective Such be regul.ated the and 
procedures of SRT Joint Administrative Council. The 

enjoy the privileges, and extended to the Divisions, 
Units, by statutory or common law. 

It is the of all and units to with applicable State 
and law. 

2 



SECTION II 

DEFINITIONS 

In the tenns shall as follows: 

Division: geographical of 
to form a 
the purposes 

a.:>JV'V.UL'V members of Division. 

B. Emergency: An occurrence or condition in a Unit's territorial 
which capabilities to provide 

including, but not limited to, 
ground/trench rescue, hazardous 

rescue, structural collapse rescue, 
and the III 

and to best serve the 
in preserving the life, health, and welfare 

public within territories of or such territory as may 
annexed such Units hereinafter. 

c. Incident Commander: An individual 
operations at an emergency scene. 

who responsibility for the overall 

D. Mutual Aid Box Alarm System - Illinois (MABAS-IL): 
cooperative formed to provide to a Stricken by the 
Aiding Unites) in accordance with a plan established and maintained 
by MABAS-IL member units and amended time to time. 

Unit or Member Unit: A unit local government (or an intergovernmental 
public the units of the intergovernmental public 
agency is comprised) or a private that an (or 
resolution) terms the and is a member of a 

Division signatory to this Agreement, and that pays assessments 
to the MABAS Division, that to comply with the rules, 
policies procedures adopted by 

E. SRT Joint Administrative Council: 
Administrative Council of 
by of MABAS Divisions that are 

SRT Joint 
or appointed 

Stricken Unit: A Unit aid the event of an 

3 



SECTION III 

ADMINISTRATIVE ORGANIZATION 


This shall be administered by Joint Administrative Council 
composed of three (3) or appointed from MABAS 
signatory to this agreement. SRT Joint Administrative Council shall administer routine 
affairs the SRT teams for MABAS Division, provide for hiring of 

records and/or 

The Council shall 
members a and 
and other essential to administration 

under the direction the current Secretary/Treasurer. 

The SRT Joint Administrative Council may subcommittees, to 
further the of Membership on sub-committees include of 
the SRT Administrative Council and/or other individuals with subject matter 

purchased by SRT Joint shall be 
.r>1J£.U Division(s). 

The Joint Council may bylaws to this 
Agreement meetings. Bylaws must be approved through majority vote the 
member Divisions. All Units must all bylaws or to current 

fourteen (14) calendar days in advance of the where such or changes to 
current bylaws will considered. Upon adoption or modification, the member Units 

a copy amended or bylaws fourteen (l4) after adoption. 

SECTION IV 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 


'fhe SRT Joint Administrative may, from to time, policies and procedures 
consistent with this agreement to provide for orderly implementation of 
response teams coordination to be provided by this Agreement. 

SECTION 
AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO CONTRACTS 

Joint Administrative Council express authority to associate with individuals, 
and corporations in any manner not prohibited law on behalf the Council 

activities with the Administrative Council's intent. 

4 



Administrative Council the authority to enter contracts on behalf 
the Joint Administrative Council for the purchase goods and services that are 

with the Council's purpose and intent. Each contract set fully purposes, 
obligations and of the Joint Administrative Council and all 

contract. 

SECTION VII 
JURISDICTION OVER PERSONNEL AND EQUIPMENT 

"'"'''''''"'' 	and dispatched to aid a Stricken Unit pursuant to this 
employees, property responsibility the Unit. Personnel and equipment 

rendering aid shall to the Incident Unit at occurrence 
scene for direction and retains the right to withdraw 

and all aid however, that 
the Incident Commander the Stricken 

withdrawal of 

SECTION VIII 
FINANCES 

A. and equipment provided pursuant to this under emergency 
conditions as defined shall be provided at no to the Unit, as 
set forth or the and MABAS. 

B. 	 unusual and set In and 
procedures as adopted amended from 

member Division maintains the duty to adequately fund the 
operation, replacement and related needs for the specialized response teams as 

rnpr"'t~'11 in Section I of Agreement. Nothing in clause shall the member 
from the of 

D. 	 The SRT Administrative Council annually develop a budget for the Council's 
operation to submitted to Division for approvaL shall include a 

assessment payable annually through their respective Division. The 
Joint Administrative Council is hereby authorized to available funds in 
accordance with approved budget. In event of an unplanned or emergency 
expenditure, the Joint Council must obtain approval 
"';;'~f';~'11 Division( s). 

Units to fund the ",,-,,_1,,11:U 

team 	 Joint Council. shall pay the 
funds assessed the operation Joint Administrative Council to the 

Secretary/Treasurer. 

5 




A. 
Agreement 
coverage 
property 
professional 
reasonable 

B. 

A. 

in law, or 
attomey's 
All employee 
claims, 
Unit rendering 

SECTION 
INSURANCE 

and their 
procure and maintain, 

comprehensive liability, 
workers' compensation, and, 

with such limits of 

no obligation to 
Aiding Unit or to 

SECTION X 
INDEMNIFICATION 

Division and their member 
damage, personal inj 

Agreement; provided 
misconduct by a 

its member 

costs that may arise from 

participating under the terms 
and exclusive eXl)erlse. 

contractual liability, personal 
emergency medical 


deductibles as are prudent 

equipment. 


or to 
acts or omissions of 

to waive all claims 

occurring 111 COluse;a 


claim is not a 


or providing aid pursuant to 
indemnify, and defend Unit 

demands, liability, losses, 
indemnity shall 

aid pursuant to this 
wage and disability payments, pensions, workers' compensation 

to or destruction of equipment and and medical expenses 
the sole and of the respective 

provided, .nXlP'"'''' that claims made by a third are not caused by gross 
or willful on the part of the Unit 

an Aiding Unit or Stricken 
provided solely and 

benefits, wage and disability payments, pensions, workers' 
and hospitalization employees and 

D. 	 Each MABAS Division and its member Units before any court all civil 
immunity to 745 ILCS 1011 et defenses in any 
litigation to this Agreement is a 
defendant. 

6 



SECTION XI 

NON-LIABILITY FOR FAILURE TO RENDER AID 


No MABAS Division or member Unit, nor its agents or personnel, shall be liable to any 
other Unit, whether expressly or impliedly, for its failure or refusal to render aid pursuant hereto, 
nor for the withdrawal of aid, in whole or in part, which has been provided pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

SECTION XII 

TERM 


This Agreement shall be in effect for a term of one year from the effective date and shall 
automatically renew for successive one-year terms unless terminated in accordance with this 
Section. 

Any MABAS Division may withdraw from this Agreement at any time, by giving written 
notice to the SRT Joint Administrative Council Chairman specifying the date of termination. The 
written notice provided herein shall be given by certified mail, at le~st three hundred sixty five 
(365) days prior to the date on which termination is to be effective. All terminations shall be 
effective on the last day of the calendar month. Any unilateral withdrawal shall result in 
forfeiture of all sums of money or property of any kind contributed by the withdrawing MABAS 
Division and its member Units. 

SECTION XIII 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS AGREEMENT 


The SRT Joint Administrative Council created by this agreement shall become 
operational on January 151 of the year immediately following the execution of this agreement by 
both MABAS Divisions 4 and 5. An organizational meeting shall be held at a time and place so 
selected by the Presidents of MABAS Divisions 4 & 5 to establish the SRT Joint Administrative 
Council. Notice of this meeting shall be provided to all member Units at least ten (l0) calendar 
days prior to the time and date selected. 

SECTION XIV 

BINDING EFFECT 


This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of any successor entity 
which may assume the obligations of a MABAS Division. However, this Agreement may not be 
assigned by any Division without the prior written consent of the SRT Joint Administrative 
Council and this Agreement may not be assigned by the SRT Joint Administrative Council 
without the prior written consent of each member Division. 

7 



SECTION XV 
VALIDITY 

The invalidity of this Agreement shall not 
provision. If, for reason, any provision of this Agreement is determined by a 
competent jurisdiction to invalid or unenforceable, that provision shall 
and this with that provision severed or as modified by court order. 

SECTION XVI 
GOVERNING LAW 

interpreted and construed in 
of the 

SECTION XVII 
AMENDMENTS 

"''-', ........,'" from time to time by the majority vote 


SECTION XVIII 
IN COUNTERPARTS 

This in multiple counterparts or 
multiple signature of which shall constitute and be same 
document. 

8 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been duly executed by the duly elected 
presidents of the MABAS Divisions whose names are subscribed below or on the signature 
pages as attached hereto from time to time, and which pages are specifically incorporated herein. 

By: 't----:£ )~
President - MABAS Division 4 

Attest: 

Dated this J..L day of 

By: --7~~~~~------

Attest: 

Dated this n day of & teu-s7 ,2015 
Secretary - MA AS Division 5 

Execution Copy Dated: 08/05/2015 

9 



LAKE AND COUNTIES FIRE DEPARTMENTS 
RESPONSE TEAMS ASSOCIATION 

RESOLUTION 2015-2 

ASSETS OF THE LAKE 
DEPARTMENTS 

REFERRED TO AS "SRT" TO 

A RESOLUTION 
MCHENRY 

CONTROL OF MABAS DIVISIONS 4 AND 5 

State of Illinois, 1970, Article VII, Section 10, 
to contract or otherwise associate among themselves in 

Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 22011 et seq.) provides 
or authority exercised or which may be exercised by a unit of 

jointly with any other unit of local government or private 
corporation; and 

Cooperation Act provides that anyone or more 
one or more public agencies to perform any governmental 

the public agencies entering into the contract is 
provided that such contract shall be authorized by the governing 

(70 ILCS 7051l1a) provides that a 
and to governmental units organized to 

5!l-1-5) authorizes the 
a which it pu~;se~,st:s 

intergovernmental agreement 
organized as the 

was expanded in 2005-06 

name was 
Teams and 

agr'eernelt1t to include fire departments from McHenry County 
and McHenry Counties Fire Departments 

and 

authorizes 
manner not prohibited by or ordinance; and 

any power or powers, 
local 

may contract with 
which any 



J.IJ.:l'U.:.,,,,",,''>, the SRT is administered by an C,".... ...,I.H composed of the Fire 
designated by the member unit of each member 

various public agencies in lllinois, Wisconsin, Missouri, Michigan, Indiana 
federated together through the aforementioned 

System (MABAS); and 

is divided into 
to facilitate day-to-day operations and 

4, 
is duly authorized by 

.......ILU ..'J. MABAS Division 5, "{w,,nn 

is duly authorized by MABAS-IL as a 

"~"''-L.'''''.>. MABAS-IL has agreed to 

Divisions 4 & 5 which will 


functions within each respective 

in both Divisions; and 


Executive Committee 
apparatus, equipment and ftmding 

advantage of the insurance, 

was a trendsetting 
however the SRT 

based model; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of 
Lake and McHenry Counties 

Committee does hereby resolve that: 

and Agreements to form the 

generally based on 
local policy and procedures; 

departments (Units) in 

SRT related response 
coverage, equipment 
increasing the SRT 

that it is in the best interest 
to the respective MABAS 

available through MABAS-

the time of its original 
throughout the state of 

it 	is in their best 
to establish an 

recitals and the covenants 
Specialized Response 

2 



1, 	 The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into this Resolution. 

2. 	 On or after the 15l day of December 2015, title, ownership, responsibility and liability for 
the following pieces of apparatus, and all associated tools, equipment and hardware shall 
transfer to the possession of MABAS Division 4: 

SRT Unit Model Make, Model or Vehicle Identification or 

Number Year Type Serial Number 

6951 2005 Kenworth / Haz Mat 2NKMHD6X25M114113 

6954 2013 Peterbilt / Conventional 365 1NPSLPOX6DD199889 

6955 2004 International/First Responder 1HTWGADT94J092311 

6958 2000 Ford / F550 Super Duty 1FDAF56F2YEB48172 
6972 1983 Trail King / Trailer 1 TKC02423DM053643 

6973 1995 Ford / Brush Vehicle 1FDXF80E99VA25777 

6990 2000 Wells / Spill Trailer 1WC200G26W1055020 

6992 2005 Eager Beaver / Deployment 112H8V3225L069674 
Trailer 

6994 1990 E-Z Loader / Boat Trailer 1ZEAAAN R5XA015464 
6997 2001 Ford Cutaway E350 SUP Bus 1FDWE35S01HB51474 

1990 Wells Cargo / Sonar Trailer 1WC200G27L1047845 

TRT4 1998 TRT Roll-off Container 
TRENCH4 2003 Trench Roll-off Container 
Support 4 2008 Haz-Mat Support Roll-off 

Container 

Lumber 4 2003 Lumber Cache Roll-off Platform 

Spare 2006 Spare Roll-off Container 

6995 1994 Mechanics Air Compressor 


3. 	 On or after the 1 st day of December 2015, title, ownership, responsibility and liability for 
the following pieces of apparatus, and all associated tools, equipment and hardware shall 
transfer to the possession of MABAS Division 5: 

SRT Unit Model Make, Model or Vehicle Identification or 
Number Year Type Serial Number 
6950 2000 Freightliner / Haz Mat 1FV6HLCBXYHB18790 
6956 2011 International / 7000 Series 7600 1 HTWYSJT7BJ344884 
6993 1997 Wells Cargo / Dive Trailer 1WC200621V1078382 
6971 Wildland ATV 
TRT 5 2003 TRT Roll-off Container 
Trench 5 Trench Roll-off Container 

4. 	 On or after the lSI day of December 2015, the SRT Treasurer shall transfer $150,000 of 
SRI funds to the bank account of the newly formed SRT Joint Administrative Council 
created by the MABAS DIVISIONS 4 & 5 SPECIALIZED RESPONSE TEAMS 
MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT. 

3 



5. or as soon as practical 
all bank accounts 

4 percent (62%) and cause to 
Division 5 thirty-eight percent (38%) 

6. All equipment, and related items possession of the 
Administrative Coordinator shall be transferred to the possession of the 

Administrative Council. 

7. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, has been duly by majority vote 
a quorum Lake Fire Response 
Executive -IJL"-'------, 2015. 

By: 

Attest: 

4 



LAKE AND MC'HENRY COUNTIES DEPARTMENTS 

SPECIALIZED RESPONSE TEAMS ASSOCIATION 


A RESOLUTION TERMINATING INTERGOVERNMENT AL 
AGREEMENT THAT LAKE AND MCHENRY 
COUNTIES DEPARTMENTS SPECIALIZED RESPONSE TEAMS, 
HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO "SRT". 

WHEREAS, Constitution the State Illinois, 1970, VII, 10, 
units of government to contract or otherwise associate themselves in 

manner not prohibited by .law or ordinance; 

the Intergovernmental Lo~:meratJ Act (5 22011 et provides that 
power or powers, privileges or or which may exercised by a unit of 

local government may exercised unit of local government or 
corporation; and 

WHEREAS, The Intergovernmental Act provides that one or more 
agencies contract anyone or more public agencies to perform any governmental 

activity or undertaking which of the public agencies into the contract is 
by law to provided such contract shall be by the 

party to and 

JU"<"":>£"'V. the Fire ProtectIon District Act (70 1a) that a fire 
protection district may contract mutual aid and to governmental units toI",U!ULA.,U 

furnish and 

lLCS 5/I-l authorizes the 
it IJU:~:::';;;:~:::';;;:::'. 

WHEREAS, the SRI was originally County Fire Departments 
Response through intergovernmental in 1 

WHEREAS, membership was m 2005-06 a 
intergovernmental agreement to include from McHenry County the SRT 

to the Lake McHenry Fire Response 
the SRT 



WHEREAS, the SRT is administered by an Executive Committee composed of the Fire 
Chiefs (or other representative designated by the member unit of government) of each member 
unit of government; and 

WHEREAS, various public agencies in Illinois, Wisconsin, Missouri, Michigan, Indiana 
and Iowa have federated together through the aforementioned Acts and Agreements to form the 
Mutual Aid Box Alarm System (MABAS); and 

WHEREAS, MABAS is divided into operational Divisions, generally based on 
geographic regions, to facilitate day-to-day operations and develop local policy and procedures; 
and 

WHEREAS, MABAS Division 4, comprised generally of fire departments (Units) in 
Lake County, Illinois, is duly authorized by MABAS-IL as a Division; and 

WHEREAS, MABAS Division 5, comprised generally of fire departments (Units) in 
McHenry County, Illinois, is duly authorized by MABAS-IL as a Division; and 

WHEREAS, MABAS-IL has agreed to individually recognize SRT related response 
teams for both MABAS Divisions 4 & 5 which will provide for insurance coverage, equipment 
and training for SRT functions within each respective MABAS Division, increasing the SRT 
response capabilities in both Divisions; and 

WHEREAS, the SRT Executive Committee has determined that it is in the best interest 
of the SRT to transfer apparatus, equipment and funding from the SRT to the respective MABAS 
Divisions to take advantage of the insurance, equipment and training available through MABAS
IL; and 

WHEREAS, the SRT was a trendsetting organization at the time of its original 
establishment in 1996, however the SRT response model has shifted throughout the state of 
Illinois to a MABAS Division based model; and 

WHEREAS, Divisions 4 and 5 have independently determined that it is in their best 
interests to accept the apparatus, equipment and funding from the SRT and to establish an 
intergovernmental specialized response teams joint administrative council to coordinate training, 
response procedures and equipment on behalf of both the MABAS Division 4 & 5 SRT teams as 
witnessed by the execution of the MABAS DIVISIONS 4 & 5 SPECIALIZED RESPONSE 
TEAMS MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT that has been attached as Appendix 1. 

WHEREAS, the SRT through prior resolution has transferred apparatus, equipment and 
funding to MABAS Divisions 4 & 5 through Resolution 2015-2 that has been adopted through 
majority vote of the SRT Executive Committee and is included as Attachment 1. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the covenants 
herein contained, the Lake and McHenry Counties Fire Departments Specialized Response 
Teams Executive Committee does hereby resolve that: 

2 



1. The recitals are incorporated into this Resolution. 

2. 	 1, 20J6, 
SRT 

Council, 

3. 	 All reports and in the po~;seSSH of the shall be 
,nrrnp'{1 SRT Joint Administrative 

Employment Administrative the SR T shall terminate before 
midnight on December 31, 15. 

5. The cause a revIew the financial after all 
transferred obligations that all 

closed. 

6. The 	 shall request all member Units of Government pass a 
acknowledging 	 cancellation the MABAS DIVISIONS 4 

TEAMS AID 

7. 	 invalidity provISIon this Resolution invalid any 
If, for any reason, any of this a Court 
jurisdiction to invalid or unenforceable, be deemed 

severable, and this Resolution may be with or as 
modified by court order. 

WITNESS WHEREOF, duly executed by majority vote 
a quorum the Lake Departments Specialized Teams 
Executive '----__, 201 

3 



 
 

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

             
                               Agenda Item: 15 

 
Subject: 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION FOR 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 515 CAMBRIDGE LANE 

 
Action Requested: 

 
APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION (Roll Call Vote) 

 
Originated By: 

 
CHRIS AND MARGUERITE BURKE 

 
Referred To:  

 
PLAN COMMISSION AND ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request:   
 
The property located at 515 Cambridge Lane is currently comprised of two parcels - lot 7 (existing house) and 
parcel 1 of lot 8 (vacant parcel) of the Imperial Woods Subdivision.  The easterly portion of the Property is vacant 
and currently under contract by Chris and Marguerite Burke (Petitioner) to purchase and build a new single-family 
house.  In order to build their new home the Petitioner has requested the Village consider a final plat of subdivision 
that transfers approximately 56 sq. ft. of land and provides 26.1 ft. of additional frontage for a total frontage along a 
public street of 35.92 ft. for the purpose of constructing a new driveway off of Cambridge Lane.  Both lot 7 and 
parcel 1 of lot 8 maintain a lot area greater than the required minimum lot area of 65,340 sq. ft. (or 1.5 acres).  The 
approval of the resolution is conditional upon the Village’s review and approval of private easements that are to be 
established between the Petitioner and the neighboring property owner to the east; these easements will run with the 
land and be recorded against the Property.  Pursuant to Section 11-2-6B of the Village’s Subdivision Regulations, 
the sale or exchange of parcels of adjoining and contiguous land, with the approval of the Village Board, is exempt 
from the Subdivision Regulations, provided that the sale or exchange: (i) does not create any additional lots or 
reduce any lot to an area smaller than required by the Zoning Code, (ii) does not create any non-conforming  
condition, and (iii) a correct survey is submitted showing dimensions and new square footage of lots or parcels 
involved and the location of any existing buildings.  Village Staff and Legal Counsel have confirmed the proposed 
subdivision complies with all of the previously noted exemptions.  
 
To subdivide the property and qualify for the exemption to the Village’s Subdivision Regulations, as well as 
construct a new single-family house, the Petitioner is requesting the following zoning relief: i) a variation from the 
minimum lot frontage requirements, ii)  a variation from the minimum lot width requirements, iii) a variation from 
the minimum accessory structure setback requirements, and iv) a variation to permit the existing accessory structure 
that is located on parcel 1 of Lot 8 to remain without a principal structure.  Details regarding the PCZBA’s 
unanimous recommendation to approve the aforementioned zoning relief is presented in Agenda Item #16. 
 
The Petitioner and Village Staff will be in attendance to address any questions from the Board.  
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

1. Resolution Approving Final Plat of Subdivision (with attachments); and 
2. PCZBA Staff Memo Dated June 10, 2016 (with attachments).  
 

Village Administrator’s Recommendation:   Consider Approving the Resolution. 
 

 Date Referred to Village Board: 7/11/2016 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-___ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A FINAL PLAT OF SUBDIVISION  
FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 515 CAMBRIDGE LANE 

 
  WHEREAS, the Cambridge Lane Land Trust (“Owner”) is the owner of certain 
real property located at 515 Cambridge Lane in the Village, known as Lot 7, and Parcel 1 of Lot 
8 (“Parcel 1”), in the Imperial Woods Subdivision, both of which are legally described on the 
attached Exhibit A (Lot 7 and Parcel 1 are, collectively, the "Property"); and,  
 

WHEREAS, Christopher and Marguerite Burke (collectively, the “Applicant”) are 
the contract purchasers of the portion of the Property identified as Parcel 1 and Parcel 3 on 
Exhibit A; and, 
 

WHEREAS, with the consent of the Owner, and pursuant to the Village of Lake 
Bluff Subdivision Ordinance ("Subdivision Ordinance"), the Applicant has submitted to the 
Village for its review a final plat of subdivision for the Property (“Final Plat”) to alter the lot 
boundary between Lot 7 and Parcel 1; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 11-2-6B of the Village’s Subdivision 
Regulations, codified at Title 11 of the Village’s Municipal Code, the sale or exchange of parcels 
of adjoining and contiguous land, with the approval of the Village Board, is exempt from the 
Subdivision Regulations, provided that the sale or exchange (i) does not  create any additional 
lots or reduce any lot to an area smaller than required by the Lake Bluff Zoning Ordinance; (ii)  
does not create any non-conforming condition,  (iii) a correct survey of the property is submitted 
showing dimensions and new square footage of lots or parcels involved and the location of 
existing buildings, if any; and,  

WHEREAS, Village staff have reviewed the Applicant’s request for approval of 
the Final Plat and confirmed that the proposed Subdivision and the property transfer meet the 
requirements of Section 11-2-6B and may be considered for approval by the Village Board; and, 

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees have determined that it is in the 
best interests of the Village to approve the Final Plat for the Property in accordance with, and 
subject to, the conditions, restrictions, and provisions of this Resolution.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, as follows: 

 Section 1.   Recitals.   
 
 The foregoing recitals are incorporated into, and made a part of, this Resolution 

as findings of the Village Board. 
 

Section 2. Final Subdivision Plat Approval. 

A. Approval of Final Plat.  Subject to and contingent upon the conditions, 
restrictions, and provisions set forth in Section 3 of this Resolution, the Final Plat for the 
Property, prepared by Lake County Land Survey Company, consisting of two sheets entitled 
“Cambridge Lane Subdivision” with a last revision date of June 15, 2016, is hereby approved, in 
substantially the form set forth in Exhibit C to this Resolution, pursuant to the Village's 
Subdivision Regulations and the home rule powers of the Village. 

B. Authorization. The Village President and the Village Clerk are hereby 
authorized and directed, subject to the terms and conditions of Section 3 of this Resolution, to 

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



 2

execute and seal, on behalf of the Village, the Final Plat, following execution by the Applicant 
and any other party with an interest in the Property, and subject to certification by the Office of 
the Lake County Clerk that there are no property tax delinquencies, as well as all other 
certifications as necessary. 

C. Recordation.  The Village Administrator, or the Applicant at the Village 
Administrator's direction, is hereby directed to record the Final Plat with the Office of the Lake 
County Recorder upon satisfactory completion of all administrative details relating thereto and 
all conditions of this Resolution. 

Section 3.   Conditions.  

The findings in Section 1 and the approval granted in Section 2 of this Resolution 
are hereby expressly subject to and contingent upon each of the following conditions, 
restrictions, and provisions:  

 
A. Compliance with Final Documents.  Except for minor changes and site 

work approved by the Village Building Commissioner or the Village Engineer in accordance with 
applicable Village standards, the Property must be developed, used, and maintained in strict 
accordance with the Final Plat and this Resolution.   

B. No Authorization of Work.  The approvals granted pursuant to this 
Resolution do not authorize the development, construction, reconstruction, alteration, or moving 
of any buildings or structures on the Property, but merely authorize the preparation, filing, and 
processing of applications for any permits or approvals that may be required by the codes and 
ordinances of the Village, including without limitation demolition and building permits. 

  C. Zoning Variations.  The approvals granted pursuant to this Resolution are 
conditioned on the Village President and Board of Trustees granting the following variations 
from the Village's Zoning Regulations for the Property: 

1. A variation from the minimum lot frontage requirements of Section 
10-5-1 of the Zoning Regulations to permit a lot frontage for the 
portion of the Property identified as Lot 1 on the Final Plat (“Lot 
1”) to be 35.92 feet; 

2. A variation from the minimum lot width requirements of Section 
10-5-2 of the Zoning Regulations to permit a lot width for Lot 1 to 
be 123 feet; 

3. A variation from the minimum lot area and width requirements of 
Section 10-5B-5 of the Zoning Regulations to permit a lot width for 
Lot 1 to be 123 feet; and 

4. A variation from Section 10-5-9.F of the Zoning Regulations to 
permit the existing accessory storage structure located on Lot 1 to 
remain without a principal structure. 

5. A variation from Section 10-5-4C(3) of the of the Zoning 
Regulations to permit the existing accessory storage structure 
located on Lot 1 to be located within 15 feet of the side lot line. 

  D. Approval and Recording of Utility Easements.  The approvals granted 
pursuant to this Resolution are conditioned upon: (i) the Village’s review and approval of a 



 3

private water service easement and private sanitary force main easements that run with the land 
to be recorded against the Property (collectively, “Utility Easements”); (ii) the recording of the 
Utility Easements against the Property with the Office of the Lake County Recorder; and (iii) the 
notation of the final location of the Utility Easements and the recording numbers for the Utility 
Easements being added to the Final Plat to the satisfaction of the Village Administrator. 

E. Compliance with Applicable Law.  In addition to the other specific 
requirements of this Resolution, the Property and all operations conducted thereon must comply 
at all times with all applicable federal, state, and Village statutes, resolutions, ordinances, rules, 
codes, and regulations, including building, electrical, and fire prevention codes (collectively, the 
"Requirements of Law"), except as modified in this Resolution or as set forth on the Final Plat. 

F. Completion of Property Transfer. The approval of the Final Plat is subject 
to, and conditioned upon, the provision by the Applicant of documentary evidence, in a form 
acceptable to the Village Attorney, demonstrating the Owner has completed the transfer to 
Applicant of the entire portion of the property identified as Lot 1.  The Final Plat shall not be 
executed or recorded by the Village until such documentary evidence is received and confirmed 
by the Village. 

Section 4. Failure to Comply with Conditions. 

Upon failure or refusal of the Applicant or the Owner, or any of their officers, 
employees, or agents, to comply with any or all of the conditions, restrictions, or provisions of 
this Resolution, the permits and approvals granted in this Resolution shall, at the sole discretion 
of the President and Board of Trustees, by resolution duly adopted, be revoked and become null 
and void.   

Section 5. Binding Effect.    

The privileges, obligations, and provisions of each and every section and 
provision of this Resolution are for and inure to the benefit of and run with and bind the 
Property, unless otherwise explicitly set forth in this Resolution.  

Section 6. No Third Party Beneficiaries. 

Nothing in this Resolution creates, or will be construed or interpreted to create, 
any third party beneficiary rights. 

Section 7. Effective Date. 

A. This Resolution will be effective only upon the occurrence of all of the 
following events: 

i. passage by the President and Board of Trustees in the manner 
required by law; 

ii. the filing by the Applicant and the Owner with the Village Clerk, 
within 30 days after passage of this Resolution by the President 
and Board of Trustees, for recording in the Office of the Lake 
County Recorder of Deeds, of an unconditional agreement and 
consent, signed by all owners of property within the Property, to 
accept and abide by each and all of the terms, conditions and 
limitations set forth in this Resolution. The unconditional 
agreement and consent will be in the form of Exhibit C attached 
hereto and by this reference made a part of this Resolution; and 

iii. the recordation of the Final Plat with the Lake County Recorder of 
Deeds. 



 4

B. In the event that the Applicant and the Owner do not file with the Village 
Clerk a fully executed copy of the unconditional agreement and consent required pursuant to 
paragraph 7.A.ii of this Resolution within 30 days after the date of passage of this Resolution by 
the President and Board of Trustees, or in the event that the Final Plat has not been recorded 
pursuant to Subsection 2.C of this Resolution within one year after the date of passage of this 
Resolution by the President and Board of Trustees, then, at the option of the President and 
Board of Trustees by  Resolution duly adopted, this Resolution shall be of no force or effect and 
shall be rendered null and void. 

PASSED this ___ day of ___________, 2016, by vote of the Board of Trustees of the Village of 
Lake Bluff, as follows: 
 
AYES:  ()  

NAYS:  ()  

ABSTAIN: ()  

ABSENT: ()  

APPROVED this ____ day of _________, 2016. 
 
               
       Village President 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Village Clerk 
 
 



 5

 
Exhibit A 

 
Legal Description of the Property 

 
Lot 7: 
that part of Lot 7 described as follows: beginning at the north east comer of said Lot 7; thence 
south along the east line of said Lot 7, 10.00 feet; thence due west at right angles with the last 
described line 1.00 foot, more or less, to a curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7; and 
thence northeasterly along said curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7 and a southerly 
line of Cambridge Road, having a radius of 50.00 feet, 10.10 feet, more or less, to the comer of 
beginning 
 
Parcel 1: 
that part of Lot 8 described as follows: beginning at the point of intersection of the westerly line 
of Lot 8 and a line 50.00 feet southerly of and parallel with a northerly line of said Lot 8; thence 
north 80 degrees 46 minutes 45 seconds east along said line 50.00 feet southerly of and 
parallel with the aforementioned northerly line of Lot 8, 167.50 feet; thence south 88 degrees 11 
minutes 25 seconds east 64.98 feet; thence south 80 degrees 30 minutes 45 seconds east 
65.85 feet; thence south 7 degrees 09 minutes 35 seconds west 208.28 feet, more or less, to a 
point on a southerly limit of Lot 8 bearing south 58 degrees 12 minutes 30 seconds east 12.00 
feet from an angle point in the southerly limits of aforesaid Lot 8; thence north 58 degrees 12 
minutes 30 seconds west along said southerly limit of Lot 8, 12.00 feet to said angle point; 
thence south 88 degrees 22 minutes 30 seconds west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 
82.00 feet, more or less, to an angle point; thence south 76 degrees 13 minutes 30 seconds 
west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 78.23 feet, more or less, to an angle point; thence 
south 50 degrees 18 minutes 30 seconds west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 136.56 feet, 
more or less, to the southwesterly comer of said Lot 8; and thence north 0 degrees 44 minutes 
13 seconds east along the westerly line of said Lot 8, 294.60 feet, more or less, to the point of 
beginning 
 
Parcel 3: 
that part of Lot 7 described as follows: beginning at the north east comer of said Lot 7; thence 
south along the east line of said Lot 7, 25.00 feet; thence due west at right angles with the last 
described line 6.82 feet, more or less, to a curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7; and 
thence northeasterly along said curved line. being a northerly line of said Lot 7 and a southerly 
line of Cambridge Road, having a radius of 50.00 feet, 26.21 feet, more or less, to the point of 
beginning, except that part thereof described as follows: 
that part of Lot 7 described as follows: beginning at the north east comer of said Lot 7; thence 
south along the east line of said Lot 7, 10.00 feet: thence due west at right angles with the last 
described line 1.00 foot, more or less, to a curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7; and 
thence northeasterly along said curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7 and a southerly 
line of Cambridge Road, having a radius of 50.00 feet, 10.10 feet, more or less, to the point of 
beginning 
 



 6

Exhibit B 
 

Final Plat of Subdivision 





C
u

rve
 T

able



 7

Exhibit C 
 

Unconditional Agreement and Consent 

TO:  The Village of Lake Bluff, Illinois (“Village”): 

WHEREAS, the Cambridge Lane Land Trust (“Owner”) is the owner of certain real 
property located at 515 Cambridge Lane in the Village, known as Lot 7, and Parcel 1 of Lot 8 
(“Parcel 1”), in the Imperial Woods Subdivision, both of which are legally described on the 
attached Exhibit A (Lot 7 and Parcel 1 are, collectively, the "Property"); and,  
 

WHEREAS, Christopher and Marguerite Burke (collectively, the “Applicant”) are 
the contract purchasers of the portion of the Property identified as Parcel 1 and Parcel 3 on 
Exhibit A; and, 
 

WHEREAS, with the consent of the Owner, and pursuant to the Village of Lake 
Bluff Subdivision Ordinance ("Subdivision Ordinance"), the Applicant has submitted to the 
Village for its review a final plat of subdivision for the Property (“Final Plat”) to alter the lot 
boundary between Lot 7 and Parcel 1; and, 

WHEREAS, Resolution No. ___________, adopted by the President and Board 
of Trustees of the Village of Lake Bluff on _____________, 2016, (“Resolution”) approves the 
Final Plat, subject to certain modifications, conditions, restrictions, and provisions; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 7.A.ii of the Resolution provides that the Resolution will be 
of no force or effect unless and until the Applicant has filed with the Village Clerk, within 30 days 
after passage of the Resolution, the unconditional agreement and consent of the Applicant and 
Owner to accept and abide by each of the terms, conditions, and limitations set forth in the 
Resolution: 

NOW THEREFORE, the Applicant and Owner hereby agree and covenant as 
follows: 

1. The Applicant and Owner hereby unconditionally agrees to accept, 
consent to, and abide by all of the terms, conditions, restrictions, and 
provisions of the Resolution. 

2. The Applicant and Owner acknowledges and agrees that the Village is 
not and will not be, in any way, liable for any damages or injuries that may 
be sustained as a result of the Village’s issuance of any approvals or 
permits for the use of the Property, and that the Village’s issuance of any 
approvals or permit does not, and will not, in any way, be deemed to 
insure the Applicant or Owner against damage or injury of any kind and at 
any time. 

3. The Applicant and Owner acknowledge that all applicable public notices 
and hearings have been properly given and held with respect to the 
adoption of the Resolution, have considered the possibility of the 
revocation provided for in the Resolution, and agree not to challenge any 
revocation on the grounds of any procedural infirmity or any denial of any 
procedural right. 



 8

4. The Applicant and Owner agree to and hereby indemnify the Village, the 
Village’s corporate authorities, and all Village elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, and attorneys, from 
any and all claims that may, at any time, be asserted against any of these 
parties in connection with the Village’s adoption of the Resolution granting 
the approvals to the Applicant as set forth in the Resolution. 

ATTEST:      CAMBRIDGE LANE LAND TRUST 
 
 
By:       By:        
 
Its:       Its:        
 
 
ATTEST:      CHRISTOPHER BURKE 
 
 
By:               
 
 
ATTEST:      MARGUERITE BURKE 
 
 
By:               
    
 
 
 

 
 



 9

Exhibit A 
 

Legal Description of the Property 
 

Lot 7: 
that part of Lot 7 described as follows: beginning at the north east comer of said Lot 7; thence 
south along the east line of said Lot 7, 10.00 feet; thence due west at right angles with the last 
described line 1.00 foot, more or less, to a curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7; and 
thence northeasterly along said curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7 and a southerly 
line of Cambridge Road, having a radius of 50.00 feet, 10.10 feet, more or less, to the comer of 
beginning 
 
Parcel 1: 
that part of Lot 8 described as follows: beginning at the point of intersection of the westerly line 
of Lot 8 and a line 50.00 feet southerly of and parallel with a northerly line of said Lot 8; thence 
north 80 degrees 46 minutes 45 seconds east along said line 50.00 feet southerly of and 
parallel with the aforementioned northerly line of Lot 8, 167.50 feet; thence south 88 degrees 11 
minutes 25 seconds east 64.98 feet; thence south 80 degrees 30 minutes 45 seconds east 
65.85 feet; thence south 7 degrees 09 minutes 35 seconds west 208.28 feet, more or less, to a 
point on a southerly limit of Lot 8 bearing south 58 degrees 12 minutes 30 seconds east 12.00 
feet from an angle point in the southerly limits of aforesaid Lot 8; thence north 58 degrees 12 
minutes 30 seconds west along said southerly limit of Lot 8, 12.00 feet to said angle point; 
thence south 88 degrees 22 minutes 30 seconds west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 
82.00 feet, more or less, to an angle point; thence south 76 degrees 13 minutes 30 seconds 
west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 78.23 feet, more or less, to an angle point; thence 
south 50 degrees 18 minutes 30 seconds west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 136.56 feet, 
more or less, to the southwesterly comer of said Lot 8; and thence north 0 degrees 44 minutes 
13 seconds east along the westerly line of said Lot 8, 294.60 feet, more or less, to the point of 
beginning 
 



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
 

Memorandum 
 

 
TO:   Chair Kraus and Members of the Joint Plan Commission & Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
FROM:  Brandon J. Stanick, Assistant to the Village Administrator 
 
DATE:  June 10, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item #4 – 515 Cambridge Lane Request for Zoning Relief 
 

 
 

 
Applicant Information: 
 

 
Christopher & Marguerite Burke (Contract Purchasers) 
Cambridge Lane Land Trust – John Merritt, Beneficiary 
 

Location: 
 

515 Cambridge Lane 
 

Existing Zoning: 
 

E-1 Zoning District (single-family residential) 
 

Purpose: To grant variations from the minimum lot frontage and 
lot width requirements to confirm buildability of eastern 
parcel of 515 Cambridge Lane for construction of new 
single family residence.  
 

Requested Action: 
 

Seeking zoning variation from the minimum lot frontage 
and minimum lot width requirements (Sections 10-5-1, 
10-5-2, and 10-5B-4)  
 

Public Notice: Lake County News Sun – May 30,, 2016 
 

Lot Areas Existing:  Lot 7:    (68,763 square feet) 
West Portion of Lot 8:  (65,621 square feet)  
 

Existing Land Use: Single-family residential  
 

Surrounding Land Use:  North, East & West: Single-family residential  
 South: Lake Forest Cemetery  

 

Comprehensive Plan Land Use 
Objectives: 

 Preserve the unique residential character of the area;  
 Encourage rehabilitation & control redevelopment in 

an orderly manner compatible with neighboring 
properties. 

 

Zoning History: Not applicable 
 

Applicable Land Use Regulations:  Section 10-5-1: Lot Frontage Regulations 
 Section 10-5-2: Lot Width Regulations 
 10-5-5B-5:  E-1 Minimum Lot Width  
 

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2



 
Background and Summary 
 
On May 20, 2016, the Village received an application from the contract purchasers of the parcel of land 
that currently functions as the easterly side yard of 515 Cambridge Lane.   The current owners of 515 
Cambridge Lane are proposing to sell the easterly parcel, however the easterly parcel has a lot frontage 
on Cambridge Lane and a technical lot width that is less than the minimum dimensions required by the 
zoning code.   Please refer to “Attachment A” which is an aerial photograph which has been marked in 
the color “blue” to indicate the current location and configuration of the property commonly known as 
515 Cambridge Lane.  
 
In 1965 the Village of Lake Bluff approved the Imperial Woods Subdivision. This was a subdivision of 
the original estate property with an address of 1 Moffett Road that extended from the lakefront on the east 
to Moffett Road on the west and along the northerly limit of the Lake Forest Cemetery and the City of 
Lake Forest.  The Imperial Woods subdivision broke up the estate into a total of 9 parcels.  Included as 
“Attachment B” is an aerial photograph showing the easterly end of the lots in the subdivision, including 
the lot on which the estate house is located on Lake Michigan;  a large vacant parcel known as Lot 8 with 
the exception of a storage structure; and Lot 7 on which the existing single family residence known as 515 
Cambridge Lane is located. 
 
At the time of the Imperial Woods Subdivision in 1965, the owner of the estate home on the lake also 
retained ownership of Lot 8.  1n 1977, Lot 8 was subdivided into two parcels and this subdivision of Lot 
8 was approved by the Village. The easterly portion of Lot 8 was retained by the owner of the lakefront 
property while the westerly portion of Lot 8 was eventually acquired by the owner of Lot 7, commonly 
known as 515 Cambridge Lane.  With the exception of  an older storage structure in the southwest corner 
of the westerly portion of the original Lot 8, both portions of Lot 8 have remained vacant to this time.  
 
Zoning Analysis 
 
Village Staff has conducted the required zoning analysis of the current property known as 515 Cambridge 
Lane (Lot 7 on which the single family home is located and the westerly portion of the original Lot 8 on 
which just a storage building is located).   
 
Lot 7 on which the single family home is located has a total lot area of 68,763 square feet which is in 
excess of the minimum lot size required of 65,340 square feet (1&1/2 Acres) in the E-1 Single Family 
Estate District.  Lot 7 has a lot frontage and lot width in excess of 300 feet which exceeds the minimum 
lot width and lot frontage requirement of 150 feet.  
 
The western half of Lot 8, which is the portion of the 515 Cambridge Lane parcel proposed for sale has a 
lot area of 65,621 square feet which also exceeds the minimum required lot size of 65,340 square feet.  
However, Lot 8 only has a lot frontage on the Cambridge Lane Right-of-Way of 9.71 feet. This is the 
same lot frontage that has existed since 1977 when the Village approved the subdivision of Lot 8.  In 1977, 
the Village’s zoning code did not include a minimum lot frontage requirement.   The 9.71 foot length of 
frontage is depicted as a short “red” line on “Attachment C”.    
 
By definition lot width is to be measured along a line parallel to the lot frontage at a distance 50-feet back 
from the right-of-way line (50-feet being the front yard setback requirement in the E-1 District).  An arc 
measured along the 50 foot setback line has a total length of approximately 123-feet which is under the 
minimum required technical lot width of 150-feet for lots in the E-1 District.  The western half of Lot 8 



has an average east to west dimension of approximately 280 feet and an average north to south dimension 
of 220 feet. For this irregular lot layout relative to the public right-of-way it is Village Staff’s opinion that 
the lot width of the westerly half of Lot 8 does meet the intent of the minimum lot width regulation for 
the E-1 District.  
 
As noted, the lot frontage of the western half of Lot 8 (the lot proposed for sale and construction of a new 
single family home) is only 9.71 feet.  This dimension is the absolute bare minimum required for a single 
lane driveway for acess to and from Cambridge Lane.  As a result of this constriction the owner of 515 
Cambridge has proposed a minor resubdivision of Lot 7 and the western portion of Lot 8 so that 
approximately 120 square feet of land will become part of the lot for sale (the western half of the original 
Lot 8.  This land transfer will result in the lot frontage of the westerly portion of Lot 8 increasing from 
9.71 feet to 35.92 feet.    This small area of land transfer is indicated in the color “yellow” on “Attachment 
C”.    
 
Included as “Attachment D” is an enlargement of the far northwesterly corner of the westerly portion of 
Lot 8.  The proposed land transfer is shown in the highlighted color “pink”.  
 
Included with the Application Materials is the draft plat of resubdivision showing the transfer of 
approximately 120 square feet from Lot 7 to the westerly portion of Lot 8.  The subdivision will be 
considered by the Village Board upon a receipt of a recommendation by the PCZBA on the necessary 
zoning variations.   
 
Zoning Variations Required 
 
Upon Completion of the land transfer the westerly portion of Lot 8 will require the following variations: 
 

 A 76% variation from the minimum lot frontage requirements of Section 10-5-1, Lot Frontage, 
and Section 10-5-2, Lot Width, to permit a lot frontage of 35.92 feet where 150-feet is required: 
and 

 
 A 18% variation from the minimum lot width requirements of Section 10-5-2, Lot Width, and 

Section 10-5B-5, Lot Area and Width, to permit a technical lot width of 123 feet where 150 feet 
is required.  

 
The Petitioners have addressed the Standards for Variation in their application which is attached.  The 
PCZBA should consider if the Petitioners’ statements and submitted materials satisfy the established 
standards for variation.   
 
PCZBA Authority 
 
Because Minimum Lot Frontage and Minimum Lot Width Requirements are not Bulk Regulations the 
PCZBA has recommending authority only regardless of the percentage of variation.   Therefore, the 
PCZBA has the authority to:  

 Recommend the Village Board approve, approve with conditions or deny the request for: 
o A 76% variation from the minimum lot frontage requirements to allow for the westerly 

portion of Lot 8 to become a buildable lot.  
o An 18% variation from the minimum lot width requirements to allow for the westerly 

portion of Lot 8 to become a buildable lot.  



Recommendation 
 
Following the public hearing to consider the requested zoning relief, the PCZBA should take one of the 
following actions: 
 

 If more information is required, continue the public hearing to a date certain to allow the Petitioners 
to provide additional information; or 

 If more information is not required, vote to:  
o Recommend the Village Board approve, approve with conditions, or deny the request for 

a 76% variation from the minimum lot frontage requirements 
o Recommend the Village Board approve with conditions, or deny the request for a 18% 

variation from the minimum lot width requirements.  
 
Attachments 

 
o Attachment “A” – 515 Cambridge Lane Vicinity Map  
o Attachment “B” – Exhibit Showing Easterly End of Imperial Woods Subdivision 
o Attachment “C” – Lot Frontage Conditions for Westerly Portion of Lot 8 
o Attachment “D” – Detail Exhibit of Lot Frontage Conditions for Westerly Portion of Lot 8  
o Petitioners’ zoning application and related material. 

 
If you should have any questions concerning the information provided in this memorandum please feel 
free to contact me at 847-283-6889. 
 

































 
 

VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
REQUEST FOR BOARD ACTION 

             
                               Agenda Item: 16 

 
Subject: 

 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING VARIATIONS FROM LOT FRONTAGE, LOT 
WIDTH, AND ACCESSORY STRUCTURE REQUIREMENTS (515 Cambridge Lane) 

 
Action Requested: 

 
FIRST READING APPROVAL OF ORDINANCE (Voice Vote) 
CONSIDER WAIVING SECOND READING (Roll Call Vote) 

 
Originated By: 

 
CHRISTOPHER AND MARGUERITE BURKE 

 
Referred To:  

 
JOINT PLAN COMMISSION AND ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

 
Summary of Background and Reason For Request:   
 
The property located at 515 Cambridge Lane is currently comprised of two parcels - lot 7 (existing house) and 
parcel 1 of lot 8 (vacant parcel) of the Imperial Woods Subdivision.  The easterly portion of the Property is vacant 
and currently under contract by Chris and Marguerite Burke (Petitioner) to purchase and build a new single-family 
house.  In order to build their new home the Petitioner has requested the Village consider a final plat of subdivision 
and zoning relief from the minimum lot frontage requirements, minimum lot width requirements, minimum 
accessory structure setback requirements and a variation to permit an existing accessory structure without a 
principal structure. The Plan Commission and Zoning Board of Appeals (PCZBA) conducted a public hearing on 
June 15, 2016 and unanimously recommended the Village Board approve the following:  
 

 A 76% variation from the minimum lot frontage requirements of 150 ft. to permit a lot frontage of 35.92 ft. 
for parcel 1 of Lot 8 (vacant parcel); 

 An 18% variation from the minimum lot width requirements of 150 ft. to permit a lot width of 123 ft. for 
parcel 1 of Lot 8; 

 A 64% variation from the E-1 District minimum accessory structure setback requirements of 15 ft. to allow 
an existing accessory structure (approximately 23 ft. in height) to encroach in the required side yard 
setback by 9.55 ft.; and 

 A variation to permit the existing accessory structure located on parcel 1 of Lot 8 to remain without a 
principal structure. 

 
The Petitioner requests the Village Board consider waiving second reading.  The Petitioner and Village Staff will 
be in attendance to address any questions from the Board.  
 
Reports and Documents Attached: 

1. Ordinance Approving Requested Zoning Relief; 
2. PCZBA Staff Memo Dated June 10, 2016 (with attachments); and  
3. Email Dated July 8, 2016 Request Waiver of Second Reading. 

 
Village Administrator’s Recommendation:   Consider First Reading Approval of Ordinance. 
 Consider Waiver of Second Reading. 
 

 Date Referred to Village Board: 7/11/2016 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2016-____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING VARIATIONS  

FROM LOT FRONTAGE, LOT WIDTH, AND ACCESSORY STRUCTURE REQUIREMENTS 
 (515 Cambridge Lane)  

 
WHEREAS, the Cambridge Lane Land Trust (“Owner”) is the owner of certain 

real property located at 515 Cambridge Lane in the Village, known as Lot 7, and Parcel 1 of Lot 
8 (“Parcel 1”) in the Imperial Woods Subdivision, and legally described on the attached Exhibit 
A (Lot 7 and Parcel 1 are, collectively, the "Property"), which Property is located in the E-1 
Estate residence district (“E-1 District”); and 

WHEREAS, Christopher and Marguerite Burke (collectively, the “Applicant”) are 
the contract purchasers of the portion of the Property identified as Parcel 1 and Parcel 3 on 
Exhibit A; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2016-___ (“Final Plat Resolution”), the 

Village Board approved a final plat of subdivision (“Final Plat”) to alter the lot boundary 
between Lot 7 and Parcel 1; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant Section 3.C of the Final Plat Resolution, the approval of 
the Final Plat is conditioned on the Village Board of Trustees granting variations from the 
Village’s Zoning Regulations to permit the property identified as Lot 1 on the Final Plat, and 
legally described in Exhibit B (“Lot 1”) to have a lot frontage and width that is less than the 
minimum required by the Zoning Regulations and to allow a pre-existing accessory structure to 
remain on Lot 1 without a principal structure; and 

WHEREAS, with the consent of the Owner, the Applicant submitted an 
application (“Application”), requesting variations from Sections 10-5-1, 10-5-2, 10-5B-5,10-5-
9.F, and 10-5-4C(3) of the Zoning Regulations (collectively, “Variations”); and 

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2016, the Village’s Joint Plan Commission and Zoning 
Board of Appeals (“PCZBA”) conducted a duly-noticed public hearing to consider the Variations 
and recommended that the Village Board grant the Variations; and  

 WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees has determined that it would be 
in the best interest of the Village to grant the Variations in accordance with, and subject to, the 
conditions, restrictions, and provisions of this Ordinance; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND THE BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF, LAKE COUNTY, ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS: 

 Section 1. Recitals.  

 The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Ordinance as the findings of the 
President and Board of Trustees.  

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 1



 Section 2. Public Hearing. 

 A public hearing to consider the applicant's request for the Variations was duly 
advertised on May 30, 2016, in The Lake County News-Sun, and was held by the PCZBA on 
June 15, 2016, on which date the PCZBA recommended approval of the Variations. 

 Section 3.   Grant of Variations.  

Pursuant to the standards and procedures set forth in Section 10-2-4 of the Lake Bluff 
Zoning Regulations and subject to and contingent upon the conditions, restrictions, and 
provisions set forth in Section 4 of this Ordinance, the Village Board hereby grants the following 
variations: 

A. Lot Frontage Variation. A variation of approximately 114.08 feet, or 76%, is 
hereby granted to the Applicant from the restrictions of Section 10-5-1 of the Lake Bluff Zoning 
Regulations to permit a lot frontage for Lot 1 to be 35.92 feet. 

B. Lot Width Variations. 

 (i) A variation of approximately 27 feet, or 18%, is hereby granted to the 
Applicant from the restrictions of Section 10-5-2 of the Zoning Regulations to permit Lot 1 to 
have a lot width of 123 feet. 

 (ii) A variation of approximately 27 feet, or 18%, is hereby granted to the 
Applicant from the restrictions of Section 10-5B-5 of the Zoning Regulations to permit Lot 1 to 
have a lot width of 123 feet. 

C. Accessory Structure Variations. 

(i) A variation is hereby granted to the Application from the restrictions of 
Section 10-5-9.F of the Zoning Regulations to permit the existing accessory storage structure 
located on Lot 1 to remain without a principal structure. 

(ii) A variation of approximately 9.55 feet, or 63.67%, is hereby granted to the 
Applicant from the restrictions of Section 10-5-4C(3) of the Zoning Regulations to permit the 
existing accessory storage structure located on Lot 1 with a height of approximately 23 feet to 
remain approximately 5.45 feet from the side lot line. 

Section 4. Conditions of Approval.   

The findings in Section 1 and the variations granted in Section 3 of this Ordinance are 
hereby expressly subject to and contingent upon each of the conditions set forth in this Section. 

A. Compliance with Application.  Lot 1 and all operations conducted thereon 
must be developed, used, maintained, and located in substantial compliance with the provisions 
set forth in Section 3 of this Ordinance and the Application attached to this Ordinance as 
Exhibit C. 

B. Compliance with Applicable Law.  In addition to the other specific 
requirements of this Ordinance, Lot 1, and all operations conducted thereon must comply at all 



times with all applicable federal, state, and Village statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules, 
codes, and regulations, including building, electrical, and fire prevention codes. 

  Section 5. Failure to Comply with Conditions. 

  Upon failure or refusal of the Applicant, or any of its officers, employees, or 
agents, to comply with any or all of the conditions, restrictions, or provisions of this Ordinance, 
the variations granted in this Ordinance will, at the sole discretion of the Village Board of 
Trustees, by ordinance duly adopted, be revoked and become null and void. 

  Section 6. Binding Effect; Non-Transferability. 

  The privileges, obligations, and provisions of each and every Section of this 
Ordinance are for and will inure to the benefit of and run with and bind Lot 1, unless otherwise 
explicitly set forth in this Ordinance. 

  Section 7. No Third Party Beneficiaries.   

  Nothing in this Ordinance creates, or will be construed or interpreted to create, 
any third party beneficiary rights. 
 
  Section 8. Effective Date. 
 

A. This Ordinance will be effective only upon the occurrence of all of the 
following events: 

i. Passage by the Board of Trustees of the Village of Lake Bluff in 
the manner required by law;  

ii. Printing and publication of this Ordinance in the manner required 
by law; and 

iii. The filing by the Owner and Applicant with the Village Clerk, for 
recording in the Office of the Lake County Recorder of Deeds, of 
an unconditional agreement and consent to accept and abide by 
each and all of the terms, conditions, and limitations set forth in 
this Ordinance.  The unconditional agreement and consent must 
be executed by the Owner and Applicant.  The unconditional 
agreement and consent must be substantially in the form attached 
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit D. 

B. In the event that the Applicant does not file with the Village Clerk the 
unconditional agreement and consent required by Paragraph 8.A(iii) of this Ordinance within 60 
days after the date of final passage of this Ordinance, the Village Board of Trustees will have 
the right, in their sole discretion, to declare this Ordinance null and void and of no force or effect. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



PASSED this ____ day of _________, 2016, by vote of the Board of Trustees of the Village of 
Lake Bluff, as follows: 

AYES:  (  )  

NAYS:  (  )  

ABSTAIN: (  )  

ABSENT: (  )  

APPROVED this ____ day of _________, 2016. 
 
 
               
       Village President 
ATTEST: 
 
     
Village Clerk 
 
FIRST READING:         

SECOND READING:         

PASSED:          

APPROVED:          

PUBLISHED IN PAMPHLET FORM:        

 

#47192862_v2 



Exhibit A 
 

Legal Description of the Property 
 
Lot 7: 
that part of Lot 7 described as follows: beginning at the north east comer of said Lot 7; thence 
south along the east line of said Lot 7, 10.00 feet; thence due west at right angles with the last 
described line 1.00 foot, more or less, to a curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7; and 
thence northeasterly along said curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7 and a southerly 
line of Cambridge Road, having a radius of 50.00 feet, 10.10 feet, more or less, to the comer of 
beginning 
 
Parcel 1: 
that part of Lot 8 described as follows: beginning at the point of intersection of the westerly line 
of Lot 8 and a line 50.00 feet southerly of and parallel with a northerly line of said Lot 8; thence 
north 80 degrees 46 minutes 45 seconds east along said line 50.00 feet southerly of and 
parallel with the aforementioned northerly line of Lot 8, 167.50 feet; thence south 88 degrees 11 
minutes 25 seconds east 64.98 feet; thence south 80 degrees 30 minutes 45 seconds east 
65.85 feet; thence south 7 degrees 09 minutes 35 seconds west 208.28 feet, more or less, to a 
point on a southerly limit of Lot 8 bearing south 58 degrees 12 minutes 30 seconds east 12.00 
feet from an angle point in the southerly limits of aforesaid Lot 8; thence north 58 degrees 12 
minutes 30 seconds west along said southerly limit of Lot 8, 12.00 feet to said angle point; 
thence south 88 degrees 22 minutes 30 seconds west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 
82.00 feet, more or less, to an angle point; thence south 76 degrees 13 minutes 30 seconds 
west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 78.23 feet, more or less, to an angle point; thence 
south 50 degrees 18 minutes 30 seconds west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 136.56 feet, 
more or less, to the southwesterly comer of said Lot 8; and thence north 0 degrees 44 minutes 
13 seconds east along the westerly line of said Lot 8, 294.60 feet, more or less, to the point of 
beginning 
 



Exhibit B 
 

Legal Description of Lot 1 
 
that part of Lot 8 described as follows: beginning at the point of intersection of the westerly line 
of Lot 8 and a line 50.00 feet southerly of and parallel with a northerly line of said Lot 8; thence 
north 80 degrees 46 minutes 45 seconds east along said line 50.00 feet southerly of and 
parallel with the aforementioned northerly line of Lot 8, 167.50 feet; thence south 88 degrees 11 
minutes 25 seconds east 64.98 feet; thence south 80 degrees 30 minutes 45 seconds east 
65.85 feet; thence south 7 degrees 09 minutes 35 seconds west 208.28 feet, more or less, to a 
point on a southerly limit of Lot 8 bearing south 58 degrees 12 minutes 30 seconds east 12.00 
feet from an angle point in the southerly limits of aforesaid Lot 8; thence north 58 degrees 12 
minutes 30 seconds west along said southerly limit of Lot 8, 12.00 feet to said angle point; 
thence south 88 degrees 22 minutes 30 seconds west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 
82.00 feet, more or less, to an angle point; thence south 76 degrees 13 minutes 30 seconds 
west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 78.23 feet, more or less, to an angle point; thence 
south 50 degrees 18 minutes 30 seconds west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 136.56 feet, 
more or less, to the southwesterly comer of said Lot 8; and thence north 0 degrees 44 minutes 
13 seconds east along the westerly line of said Lot 8, 294.60 feet, more or less, to the point of 
beginning 
 
and  
 
that part of Lot 7 described as follows: beginning at the north east comer of said Lot 7; thence 
south along the east line of said Lot 7, 25.00 feet; thence due west at right angles with the last 
described line 6.82 feet, more or less, to a curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7; and 
thence northeasterly along said curved line. being a northerly line of said Lot 7 and a southerly 
line of Cambridge Road, having a radius of 50.00 feet, 26.21 feet, more or less, to the point of 
beginning, except that part thereof described as follows: 
that part of Lot 7 described as follows: beginning at the north east comer of said Lot 7; thence 
south along the east line of said Lot 7, 10.00 feet: thence due west at right angles with the last 
described line 1.00 foot, more or less, to a curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7; and 
thence northeasterly along said curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7 and a southerly 
line of Cambridge Road, having a radius of 50.00 feet, 10.10 feet, more or less, to the point of 
beginning 



Exhibit C 
 

Zoning Application and Related Documents 



Exhibit D 

Applicants' Unconditional Agreement and Consent 

TO: The Village of Lake Bluff, Illinois (“Village”): 

WHEREAS, the Cambridge Lane Land Trust (“Owner”) is the owner of certain 
real property located at 515 Cambridge Lane in the Village, known as Lot 7, and Parcel 1 of Lot 
8 (“Parcel 1”), in the Imperial Woods Subdivision, both of which are legally described on the 
attached Exhibit A (Lot 7 and Parcel 1 are, collectively, the "Property"); and  
 

WHEREAS, Christopher and Marguerite Burke (collectively, the “Applicant”) are 
the contract purchasers of the portion of the Property identified as Parcel 1 and Parcel 3 on 
Exhibit A; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Applicant submitted an application (“Application”) requesting 

variations from Sections 10-5-1, 10-5-2, 10-5B-5, 10-5-9.F, and 10-5-4C(3) of the Zoning 
Regulations (collectively, “Variations”) in order to permit them to alter the lot boundary line 
between Lot 7 and Parcel 1; and 

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2016, the Village’s Joint Plan Commission and Zoning 
Board of Appeals (“PCZBA”) conducted a duly-noticed public hearing to consider the Variations 
and recommended that the Village Board grant the Variations; and  

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. ___________, adopted by the President and Board 
of Trustees of the Village of Lake Bluff on _____________, 2016, (“Ordinance”) approves the 
requested Variations, subject to certain modifications, conditions, restrictions, and provisions; 
and 

WHEREAS, Subsection 8.B of the Ordinance provides, among other things, that 
the Ordinance will be of no force or effect unless and until the Applicants file with the Village 
Clerk, within 60 days following the passage of the Ordinance, its unconditional agreement and 
consent to accept and abide by each of the terms, conditions and limitations set forth in said 
Ordinance; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Owner and Applicant do hereby agree and covenant as 
follows: 

1. The Owner and Applicant hereby unconditionally agree to accept, 
consent to, and abide by all of the terms, conditions, restrictions, and provisions of the 
Ordinance. 

2. The Owner and Applicant acknowledge that public notices and hearings 
have been properly given and held with respect to the adoption of the Ordinance, have 
considered the possibility of the revocation provided for in the Ordinance, and agree not to 
challenge any such revocation on the grounds of any procedural infirmity or a denial of any 
procedural right. 

3. The Owner and Applicant acknowledge and agree that the Village is not 
and will not be, in any way, liable for any damages or injuries that may be sustained as a result 
of the Village’s issuance of any permits or approvals for the use of the Property, and that the 
Village’s issuance of any such permits or approvals does not, and will not, in any way, be 
deemed to insure the Owner or the Applicant against damage or injury of any kind and at any 
time. 



4. The Owner and Applicant agree to and hereby hold harmless and 
indemnify the Village, the Village’s corporate authorities, and all Village elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, agents, representatives, and attorneys, from any and all claims 
that may, at any time, be asserted against any of such parties in connection with the operation 
and use of the Property or the Village’s adoption of the Ordinance approving the Variations. 

 
 
 
 
Dated: ____________, 20__. 
 
 
ATTEST:      CAMBRIDGE LANE LAND TRUST 
 
 
By:       By:        
 
Its:       Its:        
 
 
ATTEST:      CHRISTOPHER BURKE 
 
 
By:               
 
 
ATTEST:      MARGUERITE BURKE 
 
 
By:               
    
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
 

Legal Description of Lot 1 
 
Parcel 1: 
that part of Lot 8 described as follows: beginning at the point of intersection of the westerly line 
of Lot 8 and a line 50.00 feet southerly of and parallel with a northerly line of said Lot 8; thence 
north 80 degrees 46 minutes 45 seconds east along said line 50.00 feet southerly of and 
parallel with the aforementioned northerly line of Lot 8, 167.50 feet; thence south 88 degrees 11 
minutes 25 seconds east 64.98 feet; thence south 80 degrees 30 minutes 45 seconds east 
65.85 feet; thence south 7 degrees 09 minutes 35 seconds west 208.28 feet, more or less, to a 
point on a southerly limit of Lot 8 bearing south 58 degrees 12 minutes 30 seconds east 12.00 
feet from an angle point in the southerly limits of aforesaid Lot 8; thence north 58 degrees 12 
minutes 30 seconds west along said southerly limit of Lot 8, 12.00 feet to said angle point; 
thence south 88 degrees 22 minutes 30 seconds west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 
82.00 feet, more or less, to an angle point; thence south 76 degrees 13 minutes 30 seconds 
west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 78.23 feet, more or less, to an angle point; thence 
south 50 degrees 18 minutes 30 seconds west along a southerly limit of said Lot 8, 136.56 feet, 
more or less, to the southwesterly comer of said Lot 8; and thence north 0 degrees 44 minutes 
13 seconds east along the westerly line of said Lot 8, 294.60 feet, more or less, to the point of 
beginning 
 
Parcel 3: 
that part of Lot 7 described as follows: beginning at the north east comer of said Lot 7; thence 
south along the east line of said Lot 7, 25.00 feet; thence due west at right angles with the last 
described line 6.82 feet, more or less, to a curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7; and 
thence northeasterly along said curved line. being a northerly line of said Lot 7 and a southerly 
line of Cambridge Road, having a radius of 50.00 feet, 26.21 feet, more or less, to the point of 
beginning, except that part thereof described as follows: 
that part of Lot 7 described as follows: beginning at the north east comer of said Lot 7; thence 
south along the east line of said Lot 7, 10.00 feet: thence due west at right angles with the last 
described line 1.00 foot, more or less, to a curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7; and 
thence northeasterly along said curved line, being a northerly line of said Lot 7 and a southerly 
line of Cambridge Road, having a radius of 50.00 feet, 10.10 feet, more or less, to the point of 
beginning 

 



VILLAGE OF LAKE BLUFF 
 

Memorandum 
 

 
TO:   Chair Kraus and Members of the Joint Plan Commission & Zoning Board of Appeals 
 
FROM:  Brandon J. Stanick, Assistant to the Village Administrator 
 
DATE:  June 10, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item #4 – 515 Cambridge Lane Request for Zoning Relief 
 

 
 

 
Applicant Information: 
 

 
Christopher & Marguerite Burke (Contract Purchasers) 
Cambridge Lane Land Trust – John Merritt, Beneficiary 
 

Location: 
 

515 Cambridge Lane 
 

Existing Zoning: 
 

E-1 Zoning District (single-family residential) 
 

Purpose: To grant variations from the minimum lot frontage and 
lot width requirements to confirm buildability of eastern 
parcel of 515 Cambridge Lane for construction of new 
single family residence.  
 

Requested Action: 
 

Seeking zoning variation from the minimum lot frontage 
and minimum lot width requirements (Sections 10-5-1, 
10-5-2, and 10-5B-4)  
 

Public Notice: Lake County News Sun – May 30,, 2016 
 

Lot Areas Existing:  Lot 7:    (68,763 square feet) 
West Portion of Lot 8:  (65,621 square feet)  
 

Existing Land Use: Single-family residential  
 

Surrounding Land Use:  North, East & West: Single-family residential  
 South: Lake Forest Cemetery  

 

Comprehensive Plan Land Use 
Objectives: 

 Preserve the unique residential character of the area;  
 Encourage rehabilitation & control redevelopment in 

an orderly manner compatible with neighboring 
properties. 

 

Zoning History: Not applicable 
 

Applicable Land Use Regulations:  Section 10-5-1: Lot Frontage Regulations 
 Section 10-5-2: Lot Width Regulations 
 10-5-5B-5:  E-1 Minimum Lot Width  
 

cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 2



 
Background and Summary 
 
On May 20, 2016, the Village received an application from the contract purchasers of the parcel of land 
that currently functions as the easterly side yard of 515 Cambridge Lane.   The current owners of 515 
Cambridge Lane are proposing to sell the easterly parcel, however the easterly parcel has a lot frontage 
on Cambridge Lane and a technical lot width that is less than the minimum dimensions required by the 
zoning code.   Please refer to “Attachment A” which is an aerial photograph which has been marked in 
the color “blue” to indicate the current location and configuration of the property commonly known as 
515 Cambridge Lane.  
 
In 1965 the Village of Lake Bluff approved the Imperial Woods Subdivision. This was a subdivision of 
the original estate property with an address of 1 Moffett Road that extended from the lakefront on the east 
to Moffett Road on the west and along the northerly limit of the Lake Forest Cemetery and the City of 
Lake Forest.  The Imperial Woods subdivision broke up the estate into a total of 9 parcels.  Included as 
“Attachment B” is an aerial photograph showing the easterly end of the lots in the subdivision, including 
the lot on which the estate house is located on Lake Michigan;  a large vacant parcel known as Lot 8 with 
the exception of a storage structure; and Lot 7 on which the existing single family residence known as 515 
Cambridge Lane is located. 
 
At the time of the Imperial Woods Subdivision in 1965, the owner of the estate home on the lake also 
retained ownership of Lot 8.  1n 1977, Lot 8 was subdivided into two parcels and this subdivision of Lot 
8 was approved by the Village. The easterly portion of Lot 8 was retained by the owner of the lakefront 
property while the westerly portion of Lot 8 was eventually acquired by the owner of Lot 7, commonly 
known as 515 Cambridge Lane.  With the exception of  an older storage structure in the southwest corner 
of the westerly portion of the original Lot 8, both portions of Lot 8 have remained vacant to this time.  
 
Zoning Analysis 
 
Village Staff has conducted the required zoning analysis of the current property known as 515 Cambridge 
Lane (Lot 7 on which the single family home is located and the westerly portion of the original Lot 8 on 
which just a storage building is located).   
 
Lot 7 on which the single family home is located has a total lot area of 68,763 square feet which is in 
excess of the minimum lot size required of 65,340 square feet (1&1/2 Acres) in the E-1 Single Family 
Estate District.  Lot 7 has a lot frontage and lot width in excess of 300 feet which exceeds the minimum 
lot width and lot frontage requirement of 150 feet.  
 
The western half of Lot 8, which is the portion of the 515 Cambridge Lane parcel proposed for sale has a 
lot area of 65,621 square feet which also exceeds the minimum required lot size of 65,340 square feet.  
However, Lot 8 only has a lot frontage on the Cambridge Lane Right-of-Way of 9.71 feet. This is the 
same lot frontage that has existed since 1977 when the Village approved the subdivision of Lot 8.  In 1977, 
the Village’s zoning code did not include a minimum lot frontage requirement.   The 9.71 foot length of 
frontage is depicted as a short “red” line on “Attachment C”.    
 
By definition lot width is to be measured along a line parallel to the lot frontage at a distance 50-feet back 
from the right-of-way line (50-feet being the front yard setback requirement in the E-1 District).  An arc 
measured along the 50 foot setback line has a total length of approximately 123-feet which is under the 
minimum required technical lot width of 150-feet for lots in the E-1 District.  The western half of Lot 8 



has an average east to west dimension of approximately 280 feet and an average north to south dimension 
of 220 feet. For this irregular lot layout relative to the public right-of-way it is Village Staff’s opinion that 
the lot width of the westerly half of Lot 8 does meet the intent of the minimum lot width regulation for 
the E-1 District.  
 
As noted, the lot frontage of the western half of Lot 8 (the lot proposed for sale and construction of a new 
single family home) is only 9.71 feet.  This dimension is the absolute bare minimum required for a single 
lane driveway for acess to and from Cambridge Lane.  As a result of this constriction the owner of 515 
Cambridge has proposed a minor resubdivision of Lot 7 and the western portion of Lot 8 so that 
approximately 120 square feet of land will become part of the lot for sale (the western half of the original 
Lot 8.  This land transfer will result in the lot frontage of the westerly portion of Lot 8 increasing from 
9.71 feet to 35.92 feet.    This small area of land transfer is indicated in the color “yellow” on “Attachment 
C”.    
 
Included as “Attachment D” is an enlargement of the far northwesterly corner of the westerly portion of 
Lot 8.  The proposed land transfer is shown in the highlighted color “pink”.  
 
Included with the Application Materials is the draft plat of resubdivision showing the transfer of 
approximately 120 square feet from Lot 7 to the westerly portion of Lot 8.  The subdivision will be 
considered by the Village Board upon a receipt of a recommendation by the PCZBA on the necessary 
zoning variations.   
 
Zoning Variations Required 
 
Upon Completion of the land transfer the westerly portion of Lot 8 will require the following variations: 
 

 A 76% variation from the minimum lot frontage requirements of Section 10-5-1, Lot Frontage, 
and Section 10-5-2, Lot Width, to permit a lot frontage of 35.92 feet where 150-feet is required: 
and 

 
 A 18% variation from the minimum lot width requirements of Section 10-5-2, Lot Width, and 

Section 10-5B-5, Lot Area and Width, to permit a technical lot width of 123 feet where 150 feet 
is required.  

 
The Petitioners have addressed the Standards for Variation in their application which is attached.  The 
PCZBA should consider if the Petitioners’ statements and submitted materials satisfy the established 
standards for variation.   
 
PCZBA Authority 
 
Because Minimum Lot Frontage and Minimum Lot Width Requirements are not Bulk Regulations the 
PCZBA has recommending authority only regardless of the percentage of variation.   Therefore, the 
PCZBA has the authority to:  

 Recommend the Village Board approve, approve with conditions or deny the request for: 
o A 76% variation from the minimum lot frontage requirements to allow for the westerly 

portion of Lot 8 to become a buildable lot.  
o An 18% variation from the minimum lot width requirements to allow for the westerly 

portion of Lot 8 to become a buildable lot.  



Recommendation 
 
Following the public hearing to consider the requested zoning relief, the PCZBA should take one of the 
following actions: 
 

 If more information is required, continue the public hearing to a date certain to allow the Petitioners 
to provide additional information; or 

 If more information is not required, vote to:  
o Recommend the Village Board approve, approve with conditions, or deny the request for 

a 76% variation from the minimum lot frontage requirements 
o Recommend the Village Board approve with conditions, or deny the request for a 18% 

variation from the minimum lot width requirements.  
 
Attachments 

 
o Attachment “A” – 515 Cambridge Lane Vicinity Map  
o Attachment “B” – Exhibit Showing Easterly End of Imperial Woods Subdivision 
o Attachment “C” – Lot Frontage Conditions for Westerly Portion of Lot 8 
o Attachment “D” – Detail Exhibit of Lot Frontage Conditions for Westerly Portion of Lot 8  
o Petitioners’ zoning application and related material. 

 
If you should have any questions concerning the information provided in this memorandum please feel 
free to contact me at 847-283-6889. 
 























































cweatherall
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 3

cweatherall
Typewritten Text


	VB_07.11.16_15 Cambridge Subdivision.pdf
	515 Cambridge Zoning Packet.pdf
	Block Three Redevelopment_Roanoke_06.10.16.pdf
	120 Scranton - Complete Submittal (1).pdf
	List of Figures and Tables, iii
	Street System Characteristics
	Trip Generation Comparison

	SITE GENERATED TRAFFIC VOLUMES
	Condominiums
	TRIP GENERATION COMPARISON
	Proposed Use
	Proposed Condominiums1
	Existing Bank2,3
	Table 4
	LEVEL OF SERVICE CRITERIA – UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS





	VB_07.11.16_16 Cambridge Variations.pdf
	515 Cambridge Zoning Packet.pdf
	Block Three Redevelopment_Roanoke_06.10.16.pdf
	120 Scranton - Complete Submittal (1).pdf
	List of Figures and Tables, iii
	Street System Characteristics
	Trip Generation Comparison

	SITE GENERATED TRAFFIC VOLUMES
	Condominiums
	TRIP GENERATION COMPARISON
	Proposed Use
	Proposed Condominiums1
	Existing Bank2,3
	Table 4
	LEVEL OF SERVICE CRITERIA – UNSIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS








